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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Good morning.  I

          3  am Council Member Bill Perkins, Chairman of the

          4  Governmental Operations Committee, and I am joined

          5  by my colleague, Councilwoman Christine Quinn, the

          6  Chairwoman of our Health Committee.

          7                 We are here today to look at the

          8  rodent epidemic, and assessing the problem and

          9  implementing affirmative ongoing solutions.

         10                 I want to begin by first thanking,

         11  profusely, my colleague, Councilwoman Quinn, for her

         12  cooperation, and her guidance, in helping us address

         13  what has become a stubborn problem in our city with

         14  regard to the pest control, in particular, rodent

         15  control, and attempting to make sure that the work

         16  that we have been doing over the years continues to

         17  be a focus of this city and particularly, of this

         18  Administration.  So, I want to thank her and her

         19  staff for cooperating with us in that regard.

         20                 For those of you who do not know, I

         21  am Bill Perkins, Chair of the City Council's

         22  Committee on Governmental Operations.

         23                 Toady the Committee will be

         24  conducting its second hearing to review Intro.

         25  Number 121- A, a law dealing with the creation of a
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          2  Pest Control Board.

          3                 We were very hopeful that we would be

          4  able to have a negotiated bill from the Mayor that

          5  we would be able to vote on today.   Every

          6  indication we had received from the Mayor was that

          7  they were interested in seriously confronting our

          8  rodent epidemic, and committed to codifying lasting

          9  changes to continually assess and combat this age

         10  old dilemma.

         11                 Apparently this is not the case, and

         12  the Mayor's Office told us at the last minute, that

         13  they had no intention of negotiating this bill and

         14  were content with the current situation.

         15                 Therefore, we take this opportunity

         16  to review the rodent epidemic, listen to experts in

         17  the field and to fashion a plan that will

         18  permanently put rodent abatement on the Mayor's

         19  agenda.

         20                 Assessing current developments in

         21  this area highlight intense concerns.  Rodent

         22  complaints, as traditionally tracked, have increased

         23  eight percent.  More troubling, however, complaints

         24  have increased over 592 percent, as tracked by 311.Even

         25  more troubling is the Mayor's response and attack on
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          2  the good residents of this City.

          3                 In the Rodent Control Program Status

          4  Report, the Administration notes, "the key is to

          5  store garbage in tightly closed rodent resistant

          6  containers.  Good sanitation is good rodent control.

          7    It requires cooperation from residents, landlords,

          8  building superintendents, business and government

          9  agencies to ensure that trash is effectively

         10  contained and properly disposed. Outreach and

         11  education is aimed at gaining that cooperation."

         12                 The Administration is attempting to

         13  squarely place the blame on the tenants and

         14  homeowners.

         15                 What the report does not tell you is

         16  that the City and other publicly owned lands and

         17  residences are by far the biggest and dirtiest

         18  culprits in this sorted affair.  The report then

         19  goes on to specifically identify and blame the Bronx

         20  itself for the City's misguided program.  "After

         21  completing most initial inspections in the focus

         22  areas, the Department of Health and Mental Hygiene

         23  recognizes that the greatest challenge lies in

         24  controlling rats in the Bronx."  And again goes on

         25  to emphasize inspection failures of private citizens
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          2  and residents.  "These failure rates demonstrate an

          3  opportunity for the City to more effectively engage

          4  landlords, property owners, and tenants,

          5  particularly in the Bronx, to control rat

          6  populations."

          7                 I have never before seen any

          8  demonstrations so unwilling to shoulder the

          9  responsibility and so unwilling to discuss the

         10  problem and negotiate a better solution for all New

         11  Yorkers.

         12                 So, we will again call for the

         13  Administration to review our proposed legislation to

         14  create an opportunity to solve these problems in an

         15  affirmative and progressive light.

         16                 Intro. Number 121- A creates a board.

         17    What does this mean?

         18                 Consistency; uniform analysis and

         19  standards, clearly defined responsibilities and

         20  goals beyond one administration.

         21                 Centralization; one place to turn to

         22  large complaints.  This forces inter- agency

         23  cooperation, can better gauge the root cause of

         24  problems and initiate responses accordingly.

         25                 Comprehensive; top- down approach
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          2  with input from all major agency heads, rather than

          3  scattered, isolated piece- meal responses, including

          4  a community approach that allows for input from our

          5  local community boards.

          6                 Accountability; one board to

          7  scrutinize and assess impact of strategies, if

          8  unsuccessful can re- assess and strategize.

          9                 Success; we need a zero tolerance

         10  policy for rodents.  We may not be able to totally

         11  eradicate rodents, like crime, but we can minimize

         12  to the most acceptable and tolerable level.  The

         13  rodent epidemic is not just a health concern, but it

         14  is a sign of urban decline.  It is a quality of life

         15  issue.  This is not just a problem in the Bronx, and

         16  certainly not one caused by the Bronx.  Everyone in

         17  this City has witnessed the explosion in the rodent

         18  population over the last several years, and everyone

         19  is equally disturbed by it.

         20                 People fear rats with good cause, and

         21  they deserve a Mayor committed to resolving the

         22  issue, not just playing politics with it.

         23                 Before we begin the hearing, again I

         24  want to thank Council Member Quinn for holding this

         25  hearing jointly with our Committee, and ask her if
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          2  she would like to make a statement and introduce her

          3  committee members.

          4                 I also want to introduce the other

          5  members of this committee when they arrive.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chair.

          8                 I want to say that I have been joined

          9  by members of the Health Committee, then Minority

         10  Leader, Jimmy Oddo from Staten Island, a member of

         11  the Health Committee, Dr. Council Member, Kendall

         12  Stewart of Brooklyn.  I think that is it at the

         13  moment.

         14                 I think Chairperson Perkins,

         15  basically, gave most of the overview that we need.

         16  I just want to reiterate the issue of rodent control

         17  and pest reduction is something that this Council,

         18  particularly under the leadership of Chairperson

         19  Perkins, when he was chair of our Select Committee,

         20  is that right?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Pest Control.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Pest control,

         23  not Select Committee, is something we have been

         24  concerned about for many, many years.  And I think

         25  that the legislation that we are hearing for the
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          2  second time today, and I hope we will be able to, in

          3  the days following this hearing, sit down and have

          4  the negotiations that are needed to move this into a

          5  law that everyone can agree with in the very near

          6  future.

          7                 This bill really reflects the years

          8  of work and the goal of this Council to make sure

          9  that pest reduction becomes a permanent, coordinated

         10  focus of not just this Mayor, but every Mayor.  And

         11  by codifying and putting into law the existence of

         12  this multi- agency, multi- pronged entity, I believe

         13  we will assure that a minimum level, and we will

         14  always strive to go beyond that, but with this we

         15  can feel confident that there will be at least a

         16  minimum level of focus and coordination between

         17  agencies on this very important, and can be

         18  complicated, issue.

         19                 I am also very interested today in

         20  the oversight part of our hearing to get a sense of,

         21  there has been an increase in pest calls to 311.  We

         22  need to know how many of those are rodent related,

         23  how many of them are other pests, which we are also

         24  not supportive of though today we are only focusing

         25  on the rodents. Also, would like to know, we are the
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          2  Administration put out an 18 month goal for cleaning

          3  up, inspecting lots, there are still I think about

          4  10,000 lots left to go, are we going to get those

          5  done in time?  What is the timeframe for those?  The

          6  Administration also has a goal of by December 1st,

          7  which is very soon, to be distributing 5,800 of the

          8  rat resistant garbage cans, which are a very

          9  important component of a multi- pronged rat

         10  reduction plan. Four thousand have been distributed,

         11  I would like to know what the plan is to get the

         12  remaining 1,800 out by next week, and where are they

         13  going.  And, as the Chair said, the Bronx is still a

         14  borough that is having the highest rate, I believe,

         15  of complaints but certainly the highest rate of upon

         16  reinspection, by the Department of Health, problems

         17  still existing at those same sites with rats and

         18  rodents.  I am deeply concerned if that problem is

         19  being put on the residents or the businesses in the

         20  borough as their fault that certainly not a forward

         21  moving outlook that would help us all problem solve

         22  collectively for the borough.  But obviously, we

         23  have to add more and do more to help that borough,

         24  which of all of the targeted neighborhoods in

         25  different boroughs of the plan that the
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          2  Administration had launched to expand the targeted

          3  ones, the Bronx is the one that is still having the

          4  most problematic results, and so we need to come up

          5  with some new and larger and more plans for how to

          6  deal with that problem in the Bronx, and hopefully

          7  find extra resources to bring to the table for that

          8  borough.

          9                 That said, I think we are going to

         10  call up the first panel, which are the folks from

         11  the Administration, which somewhere under all my

         12  paper I had, oh, there we go.

         13                 Susan Kaupferman (phonetic), Director

         14  of the Mayor's Office of Operations, Dr. Edgar

         15  Butts, Assistant Health Commissioner for Veterinary

         16  and Pest Control Services, and the Department of

         17  Mental Health and Hygiene, who we just saw last week

         18  when we were discussing pests in a different

         19  context, pesticides, and I think that is all the

         20  folks for the Administration, so if you guys would

         21  join us at the table.

         22                 If there are other people you have

         23  that I did not introduce, just come on up and you

         24  can introduce yourself.

         25                 Oh, I am sorry, it is going to be
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          2  Terry Weiss instead of Kaupferman, so, sorry about

          3  that.

          4                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Good

          5  morning.  Could you both raise your right hand?

          6                 Do you solemnly swear and affirm the

          7  testimony you are about to give is the truth, the

          8  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

          9                 MR. BUTTS:  Yes.

         10                 MS. WEISS:  Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Thank you, could you

         12  before testifying, state your name and your agency.

         13                 MS. WEISS:  Terry Weiss, Mayor's

         14  Office of Operations.

         15                 MR. BUTTS:  Edgar Butts, Assistant

         16  Commissioner, Veterinary and Pest Control,

         17  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK:  You can begin on

         19  either end.

         20                 MR. BUTTS:  Good morning,

         21  Chairpersons Quinn and Perkins, and members of the

         22  City Council, Health and Governmental Operations

         23  Committees.

         24                 I am Edgar Butts, Assistant

         25  Commissioner of Veterinary and Pest Control Services
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          2  in the New York City Department of Veterinary and

          3  Pest Control Services for the New York City

          4  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene.

          5                 I am joined by Ms. Terry Weiss,

          6  Deputy Director for Health, Education and Human

          7  Services in the Mayor's Office of Operations.

          8                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          9  testify before the Council about Integrated Rodent

         10  Management in New York City and Intro. 121, which

         11  would create a Pest Control Board.

         12                 Because rodents can spread disease,

         13  cause economic loss through food contamination,

         14  cause physical damage to buildings and

         15  infrastructure, and negatively impact the quality of

         16  life of New Yorkers, the City's Health Code

         17  prohibits rodent infestations and conditions

         18  conducive to such infestations.

         19                 The Health Code authorizes the

         20  Department of Health to compel property owners to

         21  eliminate such conditions.  The Department of

         22  Health, along with the Department of Parks and

         23  Recreation, Sanitation, Education, Environmental

         24  Protection, Transportation, Housing Preservation and

         25  Development, the Metropolitan Transportation
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          2  Authority and the Housing Authority, have the major

          3  rodent operations and activities in the City.

          4                 The Department of Health is

          5  responsible for enforcing the City's Health Code

          6  with respect to rodent control. However, nearly

          7  every governmental agency, and New York City's

          8  residents, landlords and businesses as well, bear

          9  some responsibility for rodent control.

         10                 The New York City Rodent Control

         11  Initiative, created in August 2003, included a

         12  multi- agency Task Force.  This multi agency Task

         13  Force, coordinated by the Mayor's Office of

         14  Operations along with the Health Department,

         15  comprises of 22 City agencies, including the

         16  Administration for Children's Services, Department

         17  of Buildings, Department of Citywide Administrative

         18  Services, Department of Design and Construction,

         19  Department of Education, Department of Environmental

         20  Protection, Department of Health and Mental Hygiene,

         21  Department of Homeless Services, Department of

         22  Housing Preservation and Development, Department of

         23  Parks and Recreation, Department of Sanitation,

         24  Department of Transportation, the Fire Department,

         25  Health and Hospitals Corporation, Human Resources
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          2  Administration, the Law Department, Metropolitan

          3  Transportation Authority, New York City Housing

          4  Authority, the New York City Public Library, the

          5  Office of Emergency Management, Police Department

          6  and the Office of the Mayor, including the Office of

          7  Operations, Office of Management and Budget, Office

          8  of Contracts, and Community Assistance Unit.

          9                 The Task Force has become a solid and

         10  effective mechanism for comprehensively addressing

         11  rodent infestations throughout the City using

         12  Integrated Pest Management, or IPM, approach.

         13                 Members of the Task Force are

         14  dedicated and responsive and as effective as anyone

         15  with whom I have ever worked.           I would like

         16  to briefly cite some examples of how the Task Force

         17  has effectively tackled a range of problems,

         18  including tricky jurisdictional and entrenched

         19  situations that routine operations cannot easily

         20  require:

         21                 A 167th Street underpass, below the

         22  Grand Concourse in the Bronx, had a chronic rodent

         23  infestation resulting from the presence of garbage

         24  and harborage conditions.  When the problem was

         25  presented to the Task Force, Sanitation and DOT
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          2  worked together to solve it, with the assistance of

          3  the Department of DHS, OEM, and the Department of

          4  Health.  Local grocers were hiring homeless persons

          5  to dispose of their garbage, and it was ending up in

          6  a four foot corridor in the underpass.

          7                 Representatives of Sanitation and DOT

          8  filled the corridor with crushed stone and sealed it

          9  with concrete, ending the chronic dumping problem

         10  and rat infestation at that location. Beyond the

         11  immediate charge of the Task Force, DHS used the

         12  opportunity to address the needs of homeless

         13  individuals involved in the situation.

         14                 Another example is, during the West

         15  Nile virus season, clogged catch basins were

         16  creating standing waters conditions, providing

         17  significant breeding areas for mosquitoes in the

         18  Rockaways.  I brought this problem to the DEP's

         19  attention during a Task Force meeting, our meeting

         20  ended at 12:45, and by 5:00, DEP had resolved the

         21  problem.

         22                 The Task Force has opened interagency

         23  channels of communication and cooperation that would

         24  have likely been difficult to establish otherwise.

         25  These relations have improved the efficiency and
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          2  effectiveness of pest control efforts in the City.

          3                 The New York Rodent Control

          4  Initiative works with landlords, residents,

          5  community organizations and elected officials in

          6  areas where the rodent problem is most severe.

          7                 When the New York City Rodent

          8  Initiative was first implemented, the Department of

          9  Health conducted extensive educational outreach

         10  within the targeted neighborhoods.  The Department

         11  of Health's Office of Community Relations and Bureau

         12  of Pest Control met with all of the community boards

         13  within the Initiative's target areas.  In Manhattan

         14  that was Community Boards 10 and 11, in the Bronx,

         15  it was Community Boards 1, 3 and 4, and in Brooklyn

         16  it was Community Boards 3 and 4.  Representatives

         17  from the Office of Community Relations, the Bureau

         18  of Pest Control and the Department of Health's

         19  District Public Health Offices, also located in the

         20  targeted areas of the Initiative, met with District

         21  Managers as well as Health and Human Services

         22  Committee Chairs.

         23                 Some of the community boards have

         24  invited the Bureau of Pest Control senior staff to

         25  present at their Full Community Board meetings.
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          2  Moreover, the Department of Public Health Offices

          3  staff attend the monthly Community Board meetings,

          4  at which concerns regarding public health issues,

          5  such as rodent problems are recorded, and

          6  subsequently reported to senior staff within the

          7  Pest Control Bureau.

          8                 Because cooperation from the public

          9  is essential in controlling rodent infestation,

         10  education is important to success. The Department of

         11  Health has developed a new set of brochures and

         12  posters, and I think you have those with you, and we

         13  have the large posters that we can also show you,

         14  that explain in plain language rodent- proofing

         15  strategies and requirements, with separate materials

         16  prepared for tenants and landlords and tailored to

         17  their different perspectives on the issue.

         18                 As part of the Department of Health's

         19  educational outreach, posters were also placed on

         20  buses and subways, which began in August of this

         21  year.

         22                 One year after implementation of the

         23  New York City Rodent Control Initiative, more than

         24  1,200 homes and buildings in the Initiative's target

         25  areas are now rat- free, and nearly 6,500 other
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          2  properties have corrected conditions conducive to

          3  rats. These successes are a hallmark of both hard

          4  work performed by the staff in the Department of

          5  Health's Bureau of Pest Control, and of the

          6  effectiveness of the Rodent Task Force in bringing

          7  the resources of various City agencies to bear on

          8  the rodent infestations throughout the City.

          9                 We are making significant progress in

         10  controlling the rat population.  Nevertheless, there

         11  is still much more that needs to be done.

         12                 While the Rodent Initiative has shown

         13  progress in Brooklyn and Manhattan, certain

         14  neighborhoods in the South Bronx continue to be

         15  problematic.  Attached is the testimony of the

         16  Rodent Control Status Report from August 2003 to

         17  2004, and I think you have a copy of that.  I think

         18  all of the Council members were sent copies of that,

         19  and then there is copies for everyone else if you

         20  would like to have them.

         21                 The Department of Health and the

         22  Rodent Task Force will continue to address problem

         23  areas throughout the City, including those in the

         24  current Initiative target areas, and over the next

         25  three months, we will expand assessment and
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          2  interventions in the Bronx.

          3                 This target effort will rely on

          4  current complaint data, previous rat inspections and

          5  input from community members, community groups and

          6  elected officials, as well as systematic

          7  observations by experienced professionals.

          8                 We are committed to a systematic

          9  evaluation and improvement of the City's rodent

         10  control program.  For example, this year, 16 new

         11  indicators for rodent control were included in the

         12  Mayor's Management Report, including 12 indicators

         13  that measure the ability of selected City agencies

         14  to maintain in a rodent- free condition properties

         15  for which they are responsible.

         16                 The proposed legislation, Intro. 121,

         17  would create a Pest Control Board comprising of

         18  seven members, including the Department of Health

         19  and Sanitation Commissioners, with others appointed

         20  by the Mayor and the Speaker of the City Council.

         21  The bill appears to create a new agency.  The Board

         22  would be responsible for control rodents, insects

         23  and other pests.  It would also have the ability to

         24  promulgate rules and regulations, and to establish

         25  penalties for violations of these rules and
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          2  regulations.

          3                 Intro. 121 creates an unnecessary

          4  structure that is not only costly but also

          5  duplicative.  The creation of a Pest Control Board

          6  with the same mission and authority, and

          7  responsibility as the Offices of Pest Control

          8  Services and Vector Surveillance and Control in the

          9  Department of Health would inevitably create

         10  duplication, conflicts and contradictions that would

         11  certainly result in bureaucratic uncertainty and

         12  public confusion.

         13                 The Office of Pest Control Services

         14  is able to utilize the infrastructure of the

         15  Department of Health serving a variety of functions

         16  in support its goal, and successfully carry out its

         17  mission.  For example, if Intro. 121 were

         18  implemented, many of the overhead costs currently

         19  provided "in kind" by the Department of Health,

         20  would have to be replicated under a new agency.  The

         21  new agency would lack the economy of scale needed to

         22  function at the efficiency with which this agency's

         23  Pest Control and Vector Surveillance and Control

         24  programs currently operate. Both of these offices

         25  are dependent on a variety of critical and valuable
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          2  services provided by various offices, bureaus, and

          3  divisions in the Department of Health.

          4                 Among the agency units that provide

          5  key services, related to our mission, that which

          6  would otherwise have to be duplicated would be the

          7  Bureau of Communicable Diseases, which provides

          8  expertise regarding the role of many pests in

          9  transmitting diseases to humans; the Office of

         10  Community Affairs, which serves as liaison with

         11  Community Boards and the citizenry; the Office of

         12  Cross- Cultural Affairs, which provides

         13  linguistically- and culturally- appropriate language

         14  translation services for diverse populations our

         15  education efforts strive to reach; the three

         16  District Public Health Offices, which provide

         17  community outreach and coordination of a range of

         18  public health activities in several of New York

         19  City's underserved neighborhoods; the Employee

         20  Health and Safety unit, which provides critical

         21  worker safety oversight; the Bureau of Environmental

         22  and Occupational Disease Epidemiology, which

         23  provides expertise on toxicology and safety issues

         24  involving pesticides; the Division of Epidemiology

         25  and Office of Policy and Planning, which provide
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          2  expertise, acquisition and analysis of data related

          3  to effects of pests and their control, as well as

          4  the ability to map and effectively present these

          5  data to decision makers and to the public; the

          6  Office of Grants Management, which assists in

          7  obtaining grants to initiate innovative programs,

          8  such as the newly- funded Rodent Academy; the Health

          9  Academy, which supports ongoing, in- house training

         10  for the Department of Health Pest Control staff and

         11  which help and support the Rodent Control Academy;

         12  the Offices of Health Media and Marketing and of

         13  Communications, which provide support with news

         14  media and create public information campaigns; the

         15  Office of Intergovernmental Affairs, which liaisons

         16  between Pest Control Services and elected officials

         17  on difficult- to- resolve cases; the Office of the

         18  General Counsel, which provides legal support and

         19  opinion, including obtaining access warrants from

         20  courts for pest control operations; the Bureau of

         21  Management and Information Systems, which provides

         22  the data and computer systems support; the Bureau of

         23  Operations, which provides fleet services and

         24  material management, including warehousing; the

         25  Bureau of Finance, which provides services related
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          2  to fines, violations and billings of landlords who

          3  do not address the rodent problems such that

          4  Department of Health abates their rodent conditions

          5  directly; the Bureau of Human Resources, which

          6  provides support for recruitment, hiring, and

          7  personnel issues; and, other key functions,

          8  including payroll and procurement, which, in a

          9  separate Pest Control Board, would have to be

         10  provided by new entities, resultantly taking away

         11  critical dollars from direct pest control services.

         12                 Before I started my career, or my job

         13  with the City, I was told that it would be a

         14  phenomenal place to work because of the

         15  professionalism of its people.  To attend and

         16  participate in a Task Force meeting or an intra-

         17  agency meeting, and experience the level of

         18  expertise and competency available to address a

         19  problem, is truly amazing.

         20                 As the council members know, keeping

         21  rodent populations in check is especially

         22  challenging in New York City, the nation's most

         23  populous and densely- populated urban area.  The

         24  Office of Pest Control Services is an enviable

         25  position, situated within the Department of Health.
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          2  Having access to and support from the Rodent Task

          3  Force, which itself brings to bear upon rodent

          4  problems the combined expertise and resources of so

          5  many of the City's governmental offices and

          6  agencies, is equally enviable.

          7                 The Department of Health will

          8  continue to maximize available resources toward

          9  efficient rodent control, to work collaboratively

         10  inside and outside the government to improve rodent

         11  control, and to promote policies and initiatives

         12  that will reduce the number of rats in our City.

         13                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         14  address this very important matter, and your

         15  continued support for our rodent management efforts.

         16                 I will be happy to answer your

         17  questions.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Just before we

         20  start questions, I want to say we have been joined

         21  by two other members of the Health Committee, from

         22  Queens, Council Member Helen Sears, and from

         23  Brooklyn, Council Member Yvette Clarke.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

         25  much, Dr. Butts, no relation to Dr. Calvin Butts?
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          2                 But let me thank you again for your

          3  testimony and for joining the team, so to speak.  I

          4  want to publicly recognize the honest intentions and

          5  serious and professional intentions that you have

          6  exhibited in prior discussions that we have had,

          7  even as I, at the same, must suggest that we are not

          8  going to be in agreement, particularly when it comes

          9  to the, what I consider to be, the failing efforts

         10  on the part of the Administration to as vigorously

         11  address this problem as it potentially can.

         12                 I think that your concerns with

         13  regard to Intro. 121 are misplaced.  I think you

         14  represent a duplicative and expensive proposal that

         15  is not actually the case, in fact, the intention of

         16  this is to do quite the opposite, which is to be

         17  more cost efficient, and to bring all the resources

         18  that we presently have scattered throughout

         19  different agencies to bear in one focused entity,

         20  and by the same token right now, we know that

         21  amongst the missions in the Department of Health are

         22  many, with pest control being one of them, perhaps

         23  getting more prominence now because of the vigilance

         24  with the Council has been pressing the

         25  Administration to address these issues, but
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          2  nevertheless, what we are noticing is a tendency for

          3  that type of focus and that type of vigilance to

          4  vary, depending on upon what Administration is in

          5  place.

          6                 So, what we need is a more direct,

          7  more focused, more rigorous, a more comprehensive

          8  approach where the mission is very clear, and very

          9  simple, and that the public, especially, can be

         10  confident as to where to turn when it comes to these

         11  types of problems, and that is why we feel that the

         12  Intro. 121, which is now 121- A, is the best

         13  approach.

         14                 But, let me just ask with regard to

         15  your report for a moment.  You mentioned some

         16  buildings that you have inspected, some of which

         17  have been what you call successful, to what extent

         18  are we finding the problem in city and other public

         19  owned properties?  To what extent have you been able

         20  to distinguish between those, which are private

         21  properties, and those which are public properties

         22  because our experience is that most of the problem,

         23  or very often is in city- owned or publicly-owned

         24  properties, including the New York City Housing

         25  Authority, the Transportation Authority, MTA, et
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          2  cetera?

          3                 Let us look at the city properties to

          4  begin with. To what extent are you seeing the

          5  problems in city properties?

          6                 MR. BUTTS:  I think that there is a

          7  concerted effort by HPD, by NYCHA, and DEP, well,

          8  DEP does not own the properties but primarily NYCHA

          9  and HPD to address the problems that are occurring

         10  on city property.  We are paying very close

         11  attention to those properties in the initiative

         12  areas, and we are trying to jointly address the

         13  problem, together with these agencies.  And I think

         14  that is one of the benefits of the Task Force, is

         15  that we are able to pull whoever we need together in

         16  a very cooperative way, and basically in short

         17  order, to address these problems.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  So, how do they

         19  compare percentage- wise?  As we have found, most of

         20  it has been taking place in the city- owned

         21  properties, or how do you compare?

         22                 MR. BUTTS:  Give me one second.

         23                 Mr. Chairperson, we do not have that

         24  right now, we will get that information for you but

         25  we do not have the percentages on which is greater,
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          2  or a breakdown of percentages.  We will get that

          3  information for you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you, but,

          5  yes.

          6            MS. WEISS:  I just want to say, as has

          7  been noted, we added 16 new indicators into our MMR,

          8  and of those, six of them are for agencies, city

          9  agencies, within the initiative area where we have

         10  all the agencies that have been mentioned by Dr.

         11  Butts, 23 of them do a survey quarterly of their

         12  managed properties, and we just started, this was

         13  the first information we are presenting within this

         14  MMR, the past one for Fiscal Year 2004, of what they

         15  found, and we will be continuously putting out how

         16  the agencies are addressing what is going on their

         17  own properties.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I just want to

         19  ask a question about this MMR issue.

         20                 So, you say you have added six new

         21  ones, right?

         22                 MS. WEISS:  Sixteen.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Sixteen, oh,

         24  sixteen, okay.

         25                 Now, the staff in preparation for
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          2  today's hearing was looking in the MMR for all of

          3  those, and it does not appear to us that they are

          4  centralized in the DOH section, that you have to go

          5  and find, go ahead.

          6                 MS. WEISS:  That is true, we have, I

          7  mean two places I really should state.  They are in

          8  each of the agencies, we cite, own section in the

          9  book, and what would be called the MMR on- line, and

         10  on- line we also have a new section, we just added,

         11  for the Fiscal Year 2000, of inter- agency programs,

         12  intra- agency programs, and this you will find all,

         13  more than 16 but it is 16 new indicators in the

         14  section called`Rodent Control'.  That is on line.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  But that is

         16  only on- line?

         17                 MS. WEISS:  That is on- line.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  So--.

         19                 MS. WEISS:  It is not in the book.

         20  In the book, you would look into the individual

         21  agencies, the six agencies, that we highlighted, the

         22  six agencies that have the most properties.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Now, next year

         24  in the book, is it going to be the same as on- line?

         25    Because that seems like a much more logical way to
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          2  do it on- line, particularly since in the bill, and

          3  also in your testimony, there seems to be

          4  recognition that it is a much more collective

          5  process, so, I think it is, the way it is done on-

          6  line sounds much more, I mean I have not seen it but

          7  much more along the lines of how you would want it

          8  to be from a philosophical perspective but also from

          9  a user- friendly perspective because to through all

         10  six sections seems a little bit unnecessary.

         11                 MS. WEISS:  Yes, we intend to

         12  continue it on- line in the same manner as inter-

         13  agency initiatives that are going on. This is just

         14  one of them.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Right, what

         16  about in the book next year though, in the next

         17  book?

         18                 MS. WEISS:  In the book, we will also

         19  keep it in the individual agencies for those who are

         20  interested in an agency.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Right.

         22                 MS. WEISS:  So, it will be in two

         23  places.  It will be in the book and on- line.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Right, but in

         25  the book will you be adding in the intra- agency
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          2  pest or rodent section?

          3                 MS. WEISS:  Not as a separate

          4  section.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Why?

          6                 MS. WEISS:  It is not, well, we just

          7  thought it would look, it would come across better

          8  to be on- line as a separate section that people

          9  could look towards.  More people are looking at the

         10  management plan on- line than in the book, less

         11  people get a copy of the book, or access to the

         12  book, so we figure on- line they would have more of

         13  that information, and we can put more on- line than

         14  developing a larger book than we have now.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Right, well I

         16  would just like to say, I mean from my perspective,

         17  it would be useful to have it in the book as well.

         18  A lot of people do go on- line although a lot of

         19  government people use the book because we get it, as

         20  do a lot of reporters.

         21                 So, I think it would be useful to

         22  have this section, which we all agree is

         23  philosophically tracking with the way we are trying

         24  to address the problem, and more user- friendly,

         25  that there is no reason to not have that both in the
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          2  hard copy and on- line.

          3                 If you want to have the one in the

          4  hard copy be briefer than the one on- line, I mean,

          5  that may be reasonable, as long as it included at

          6  the end of it, where you could go get more

          7  information on line.  But, if what we really want is

          8  to get all the info out there, I do not see why we

          9  would not put it in the hard copy as well, since

         10  that is much more, I think, frequently what people

         11  in government use.

         12                 So, I would ask you to go back, take

         13  that to the Director of the Office of Operations to

         14  consider.

         15                 MS. WEISS:  No problem, I will do

         16  that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Let me just ask

         19  one or two other questions.

         20                 I just want to first acknowledge the

         21  attendance of Council Member Peter Vallone, Jr., the

         22  chair of our Public Safety Committee.

         23                 The 311 has recognized at least 592

         24  percent increase in calls related to rodents.  That

         25  is an alarming and high number, and I just want to
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          2  get a sense of how you respond to that?

          3                 MR. BUTTS:  May I ask over what

          4  period of time is this increase that you are

          5  speaking of?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  From last year

          7  to this year.            Do you keep track of what

          8  comes in from 311, in terms of rat complaints?  Who

          9  keeps track of rat complaints on 311? Where do those

         10  complaints go?

         11                 MR. BUTTS:  They come into us, and I

         12  do not know that they are differentiated as this one

         13  came from 311, or this one came from somebody's

         14  office or came in just as--.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Well, that is

         16  significant if you are having such a dramatic

         17  increase.

         18                 For instance, the ten percent

         19  increase that you make note of, or is it eight

         20  percent, where do those complaints come from?

         21                 MR. BUTTS:  I think I have an answer

         22  for you. Three- one- one became really effective in

         23  April of this year.  I think it might be better if

         24  one would look at a year to year number of

         25  complaints, and look at the overall complaints.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Excuse me, did

          3  you just say that 311 came into effect in April of

          4  2004?

          5                 MR. BUTTS:  Hold on, I was not even

          6  here.  That is what I am I trying to figure out.

          7  For past complaints, it started in April of 2004.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Why so late?

          9                 MR. BUTTS:  I do not know, hold on

         10  one second.

         11                 MS. WEISS:  I was here.  Three- one-

         12  one is slowly, and more quickly now, incorporating

         13  more agencies into their service reporting system.

         14                 Health Department became one of the

         15  agencies that had its service report incorporated in

         16  April.

         17                 One of the services that is being

         18  tracked through 311 is pest control, and that is

         19  when they started collecting those numbers that you

         20  are talking about.  And the number of pest control

         21  complaints that we report in the Main Management

         22  Report is a combination of both, or come through

         23  regular calls, people sending in on the internet,

         24  and 311, and there was an eight percent increase as

         25  you have mentioned.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  So you cannot

          3  understand the 592 percent, because as you know,

          4  they were collecting in the 2003 report these pest

          5  control complaints through 311.  So it did not

          6  really begin in April.

          7                 MS. WEISS:  There were inquiries

          8  through 311, there is a very subtle difference in

          9  311 when they collect the information.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  However you

         11  describe it, you know what it suggests?  It does not

         12  suggest a state- of- the- art, focused, high level

         13  of concern about the publics problems with rats.

         14                 If they are coming in at this rate,

         15  that suggests that something is going on out there

         16  that we may not have our hands on, and it reinforces

         17  my concern about this effort being submerged in the

         18  layers of the Department of Health and Mental

         19  Hygiene.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  And can I just

         21  pursue this?

         22                 When somebody called in on 311 prior

         23  to April of 2004, were they told by the operator

         24  that they were actually not making a complaint, but

         25  that they were only making an inquiry, and that if
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          2  they wanted to complain they, actually if they

          3  wanted to formally complain they needed to do that

          4  in another way?

          5                 MS. WEISS:  No, no they were also

          6  directed to the Department of Health.  But I have to

          7  differ that the increase in complaints through 311

          8  shows a failing on the part of the Administration,

          9  and I think it is more of a success on the part of

         10  the Administration giving people a better way of

         11  making the complaints, along with the eight percent

         12  increase you mentioned in complaints, there is also

         13  a 12 percent increase last Fiscal Year in the number

         14  of exterminations done, so the Department of Health

         15  is addressing the increase as it goes along.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  I do not want

         17  to dwell too much on this.

         18                 Let me just mention, I think it is a

         19  great concern that there is such an increase and we

         20  are not clear what that means, other than to say

         21  that we are getting these complaints.  You have not

         22  looked at the complaints, you do not ever know what,

         23  and then for--.

         24                 What is an inquiry?  How do I know I

         25  am doing an inquiry as opposed to doing a complaint?
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          2    Because I have never heard--.

          3                 Does an inquiry trigger anything?

          4  What does that do?

          5                 MS. WEISS:  It does trigger a

          6  referral to the agency involved.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  And what is the

          8  difference between an inquiry and a complaint?

          9                 MS. WEISS:  One tracks for a result,

         10  and one is, you are asking a question.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  All right, so

         12  now, I just want to understand.  This brochure, is

         13  this 311 on the last page, is that for inquiry?  It

         14  says, "for more information call 311".  Is this for

         15  inquiry or is this for complaints?  Because it does

         16  not say for complaints, it says for information call

         17  311.

         18                 MR. BUTTS:  We would hope it would be

         19  for either. If a person wants to call 311, we would

         20  hope that if they have a rat problem or a rodent

         21  problem, that they make a complaint so we can act on

         22  it.  And we will act on it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Okay, so you

         24  will make this clearer that it is for information

         25  and for complaint?
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          2                 MR. BUTTS:  We will.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you.

          4                 MR. BUTTS:  Thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I just have a

          6  couple of additional questions.

          7                 We talked about the members of the

          8  community boards and other folks that you are

          9  working with in these efforts.  Can you tell us a

         10  little bit about how those entities participated,

         11  how they made their feelings, concerns, clear, what

         12  role they were given in saying this is working well,

         13  this is not working well?

         14                 MR. BUTTS:  First off, I humbly say

         15  that I joined the organization on June 7th, so a lot

         16  of the historical stuff I cannot exactly respond to.

         17    I can tell you what we are doing with the

         18  community boards right now.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Well, maybe

         20  somebody else could come up, they could just join

         21  you at the third chair and introduce themselves,

         22  which would be perfectly fine from our perspective.

         23                 MR. BUTTS:  Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Sure.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  I just want to
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          2  acknowledge that in our balcony we are honored to

          3  have students from P.S. 235 from Council Member

          4  Clark's district, who are with us today, with their

          5  teacher, Ms. Thompson.

          6                 Welcome to the City Council.  One day

          7  you will be here with us or after us.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 We are talking about rats.  Anybody

         10  have rats in

         11  their neighborhood?  Raise your hand.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Oh, everybody.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Oh, oh.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  And if that is

         15  not a scientific study.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Now, how does

         17  that translate.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Council

         19  member, may I just quickly, I think you should just

         20  take note of that because that is the 40th Council

         21  District.

         22                 But I wanted to say`hi' to our third

         23  graders.  You know, third graders are very special

         24  in the City of New York because with the advent of

         25  examinations in the third grade, we have to give
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          2  them all the encouragement that we can.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  And, I want

          5  to thank them for coming on this learning lesson to

          6  the council, and we have here the Department of

          7  Health.

          8                 We are questioning today about how we

          9  can best serve our community to eliminate rats in

         10  the neighborhood, so I hope you will listen very

         11  closely and be able to go back to school and go home

         12  and let your parents know just what the City of New

         13  York is saying about this problem.

         14                 Thank you for coming.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Specifically

         16  on page three in your testimony you talked about,

         17  and so my question relates mostly to the Bronx,

         18  though any other information for how you have worked

         19  with community folks and other places is great too,

         20  but you say that the targeted effort will rely on

         21  current complaint data, previous rat inspections,

         22  and input from community members, community groups,

         23  and elected officials as well as systemic

         24  observations by experienced professionals, so, we

         25  want to find out how exactly these community
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          2  members, community groups and elected officials are

          3  participating.  What is the structure?  What is the

          4  frequency, et cetera?

          5                 MR. FOGGIN:  My name is Mark Foggin,

          6  and I help coordinate their rodent initiative in the

          7  three targeted areas.

          8                 We have, similar to the citywide Task

          9  Force that meets on weekly basis, we are meeting

         10  with individual borough- level Task Forces in each

         11  of the three initiative areas, and invited to those

         12  meetings and attending regularly are local

         13  operational managers from each of the key city

         14  agencies that are also represented on the citywide

         15  Task Force, as well as input from community board

         16  members, so, it varies from month to month but we

         17  have had district managers come to several of our

         18  meetings in the different boroughs.

         19                 In some cases, we have had chairs of

         20  the Environmental or the Health Committee come and

         21  share with us their concerns for rodents in

         22  particular areas.

         23                 I think the passage that you quoted

         24  from speaks to what we are trying to do, which is to

         25  take data that we are already collecting and have
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          2  from our previous inspections as well, is that we

          3  receive some complaints and add that to new

          4  information that we are getting, sort of more direct

          5  intelligence from other areas where constituents can

          6  lodge their complaints, and share their concerns,

          7  which is the community boards.  Those borough- based

          8  Task Forces meet monthly in each borough.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  So the

         10  community boards come to your monthly task force

         11  meetings in these areas, is that what you are

         12  saying?

         13                 MR. FOGGIN:  Just for what we are

         14  doing, just for the rodents, it is not the borough

         15  board.  We have also attended borough boards in some

         16  instances.

         17                 What we have set up, through the

         18  Department of Health, and in conjunction with our

         19  district public health offices in the South Bronx,

         20  Bed- Stuy and Bushwick, and in East and Central

         21  Harlem are borough- level rodent Task Forces where

         22  we meet with the local counterparts for each of the

         23  city agencies, as well as community board members

         24  from those effected areas.  It depends on which

         25  month, sometimes we have had the district manager.
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          2  Sometimes we have had the chairs of the

          3  Environmental or the Health Committees.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  What other

          5  community groups in the boroughs come to these

          6  meetings?

          7                 And what level of elected officials

          8  come to these meetings?

          9                 MR. FOGGIN:  We have not had any

         10  elected officials at these meetings prior to the,

         11  and this was before I joined the program but, at the

         12  initiation of the initiative in August of 2003, the

         13  Mayor's Office of Operations and the Department of

         14  Health reached out to the elected officials,

         15  including the city council members in each of the

         16  targeted areas.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  What does that

         18  mean because in the testimony it says that your

         19  targeted effort is going to rely on input from

         20  community members, community groups and elected

         21  officials?

         22                 So if they are not coming to the

         23  meeting, what structure do you have in place to get

         24  this information that you are going to develop your

         25  targeted effort upon?
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          2                 MR. FOGGIN:  I think we are going

          3  that through the community boards, as well as other

          4  community groups that we are working with.

          5                 So for instance, in the Bronx we are

          6  working pretty closely, our borough director works

          7  on an almost weekly basis with representatives from

          8  South Bronx churches who are working with our staff

          9  to identify hot spots where we have targeted our

         10  enforcement and our education and outreach

         11  initiatives, as well as the distribution of our

         12  rodent- proof, rodent resistant garbage cans.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  But these

         14  churches do not attend your meetings for these

         15  areas?

         16                 MR. FOGGIN:  We have relied on the

         17  community boards to act as their proxy for, just to

         18  make the meetings more manageable and more

         19  effective, use them as proxies for other community

         20  groups.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  So the

         22  agencies in the targeted area, so let us just say

         23  the Bronx, in the Bronx all the agencies on the

         24  ground in that area have a monthly meeting to talk

         25  about the effort, and the community board is there.
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          2                 MR. FOGGIN:  Correct.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  And you have

          4  told the elected officials in the Bronx you are

          5  doing this?

          6                 MR. FOGGIN:  We briefed the borough

          7  president, I forget which date a couple of months

          8  ago, at his borough board meeting on our activities

          9  there, and invited him to participate directly

         10  either at the meetings or by submitting a list of

         11  concerns that we would follow up on.

         12                 We received the list, and have

         13  provided feedback and followed up on all of the

         14  activities that he pointed out to us.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Now what about

         16  the affected city council members, assembly members

         17  and state senators?

         18                 MR. FOGGIN:  I am told by our

         19  intergovernmental office that we met with several of

         20  them prior, or have been meeting with them

         21  throughout on rodent related issues.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  And are they

         23  specifically, which I think is useful, but are the

         24  specifically participating and in what way in this

         25  particular effort?
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          2                 How are they giving you information,

          3  upon which you are creating your strategy, which is

          4  what you have said?

          5                 MR. FOGGIN:  One example, in Brooklyn

          6  recently--.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  No, no, no,

          8  just tell me about the Bronx right now, let's stick

          9  in the Bronx.

         10                 MR. FOGGIN:  Okay.

         11                 MR. BUTTS:  Let me just talk about

         12  the Bronx.  I attended a meeting with--.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Wait, I am

         14  sorry, so go back, so the city council member,

         15  assembly members and the senators of the Bronx, it

         16  seems like we are not 100 percent clear.  You have

         17  met with them, or you are in the process of meeting

         18  with them but you are not 100 percent clear how they

         19  are going, the mechanism by which they are going to

         20  formally participate since they are not

         21  participating in your meetings, though the borough

         22  president was offered and has chosen another way of

         23  giving in.  But, is that fair to say?

         24                 MR. BUTTS:  I think that is fair to

         25  say.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I think that

          3  is problematic.               I mean if the Bronx is

          4  the neighborhood that is still having the largest

          5  problem, and I fail to understand why you would not

          6  want to have everybody at the table, and why it

          7  would not be useful to have, quite frankly, more

          8  community, have any community groups, the community

          9  board and the local elected officials at the table.

         10  And I am concerned that the community board is, as

         11  you stated, your conduit to the community

         12  organizations because I doubt but maybe I am wrong,

         13  you have given the community board in the Bronx any

         14  additional financial resources to hire somebody who

         15  could specifically do this, yet by your own

         16  admission, you have given the community board the

         17  responsibility of doing the community outreach,

         18  which is I think what your colleague stated.

         19                 MR. BUTTS:  I would not say that we

         20  have given them the total responsibility.

         21                 We want to partner with each

         22  community board.  I met with the Bronx borough

         23  president, and every director of the community

         24  board.  We have gone to community board meetings,

         25  and what we have asked for in every case, one of the
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          2  first things that we say,`if you have got a problem,

          3  or you know of problems, please let us know and we

          4  will address it'.  And I will say that I think every

          5  problem that they have brought up, we have

          6  addressed,

          7  and--.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  And I am sure

          9  if the community board calls 311, I do not want to

         10  belabor the point but I do want to reiterate, I have

         11  a lot of concern that I do not think the proper

         12  amount of outreach is being done and we may need to

         13  do a`sit- down' with folks from the Bronx or others

         14  about this.  I have no doubt that when the community

         15  board calls you with a complaint, you get right on

         16  it.  I have no doubt.

         17                 My concern is that when your

         18  colleague was outlining the monthly meetings in the

         19  Bronx, he specifically said, "and the community

         20  boards come to the meeting", and also referenced

         21  that through the community boards you would make

         22  contact with South Bronx churches, and he indicated,

         23  I do not remember the exact phrasing, that you were

         24  allowing the community board to be your, kind of,

         25  arm to these other community entities.  And I think
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          2  that is problematic, particularly since the

          3  community board has not gotten any extra resources

          4  to do it, and I do not understand why you have not

          5  engaged more aggressively the local elected

          6  officials.

          7                 So all of this is just to say, I

          8  think that you are missing opportunities to get even

          9  more connected with folks in the Bronx, and I think

         10  you should go back to the table, drawing board, and

         11  take a look at the outreach model you are using

         12  because I think it is too much to rely exclusively

         13  on the community board who is probably already

         14  stretched to the maximum.

         15                 MR. BUTTS:  I think your point is

         16  well taken, and that will be done.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you.

         18                 MR. BUTTS:  Thank you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  And we will

         20  probably want to, I will reach out to the chair of

         21  the Bronx delegation who I said may want to come

         22  back in and talk to folks.

         23                 Just one kind of technical question

         24  before we move on to other members.

         25                 In the Fiscal Year`05 Financial
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          2  Management Systems Reports, we have for Fiscal

          3  Year`05, $13.1 million in the pest area, and we

          4  wanted to know whether that includes the NYCHA, PMP

          5  Funds?  Or whether those are budgeted under NYCHA?

          6                 MR. BUTTS:  I have the numbers, one

          7  minute.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Okay.

          9                 MR. BUTTS:  I am told, no ma'am, it

         10  does not.

         11                 No, the $13 million for FY`05 is,

         12  there is $13 million for FY`05, $12 million for

         13  FY`04.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Well, we have

         15  $15 million for FY`04, which includes the NYCHA

         16  money, oh, okay, right, okay.

         17                 MR. BUTTS:  Okay.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Council Member

         19  Stewart.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you.

         21                 Dr. Butts, I have some simple

         22  questions.

         23                 If one calls 311, which agency, let

         24  us assume you call 311 with a pest control problem,

         25  which agency would that go to?
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          2                 If I said, "well I have a lot of rats

          3  in my house or in my backyard or something like

          4  that."  Which agency, how do you know which agency

          5  it goes to?

          6                 MR. BUTTS:  It would come to us

          7  unless it would fall under Parks or NYCHA, and then

          8  it would go to them, and if we do get a complaint

          9  that needs to go to somebody else, it is very

         10  quickly sent, redirected to the proper agency.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So who does

         12  that determination?  That is what I am trying to get

         13  at.

         14                 If you call 311, which handles almost

         15  every type of complaint the City has, or we have in

         16  the City, as far as pest control is concerned, who

         17  makes the determination as to it should go to the

         18  Task Force, should it go to Health Department,

         19  Sanitation, who makes that determination?

         20                 MR. BUTTS:  The first thing we do is

         21  if we get a complaint, we go out and do an initial

         22  inspection and then, if it needs to go somewhere

         23  else, we will send it somewhere else.  And if it

         24  does not, we then we act upon it, and we deal with

         25  the problem.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Who is we?

          3                 MR. BUTTS:  The Department of Health.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  The

          5  Department of Health?

          6                 MR. BUTTS:  Yes, Sir.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So you say

          8  the Department of Health goes out to every single

          9  complaint?  We had how many?  We said that we had

         10  complaints or inquiries of increase of complaints

         11  and inquiries.

         12                 You are saying that the Department of

         13  Health went out to every single one of these to

         14  investigate before they determine where it goes to?

         15                 Are you saying that now?

         16                 MR. BUTTS:  Yes, Sir.  There is

         17  duplication sometimes but, yes, Sir.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I just want

         19  to be clear because, let me go back here, we said

         20  that we had about an increase of about, we had a

         21  great increase in terms of complaints in which we

         22  could not determine whether it is inquiries or

         23  complaints, and with that increase you are saying

         24  that you went to every single one of these, or the

         25  Department of Health went to every single one of
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          2  these to investigate to make a determination which

          3  agency it goes to?

          4                 Is that is what you are saying?

          5                 MR. BUTTS:  I am saying every single

          6  one but sometimes you get a complaint that you do

          7  not know the address of, the complaint comes in and

          8  it is very vague.  The one's that were addressable,

          9  we addressed.  But if we do not have an address, we

         10  have to have the correct information in order to

         11  make the assessment, and then we do go out and we

         12  try to address every complaint.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  All right,

         14  you say you are trying.  How do you determine the

         15  task, so with the Task Force, it is only those three

         16  areas that they will handle, or they handle

         17  complaints from any other parts of the City?

         18                 MS. WEISS:   No, the Task Force helps

         19  the initiative area, through working in the

         20  initiative areas, and we also take complaints, major

         21  complaints, major areas of complaints throughout the

         22  City, not necessarily only in the Task Force.

         23                 As Dr. Butts had mentioned in his

         24  testimony, 163rd Street I think it was, under the

         25  highway--.
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          2                 MR. BUTTS:  167th.

          3                 MS. WEISS:  167th, under the highway,

          4  that required numerous agencies to be working

          5  together.

          6                 Those kind of areas we get involved

          7  in.  We were involved in around the Brooklyn Academy

          8  of Music, pulling together the MTA, Parks, Health,

          9  anybody else who has property there.

         10                 We were involved in Queens around the

         11  courthouses. There was a problem around the

         12  courthouses in Queens.  We pulled together different

         13  agencies to work on that.  That is more of the Task

         14  Force goals and mission.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  All right,

         16  public property, who deals with that, and how do you

         17  assess in terms of dealing with a problem that

         18  involves public property, like public lots or public

         19  property?

         20                 MS. WEISS:  For the public properties

         21  in the initiative area, which is where we are

         22  starting, the three areas that the Department of

         23  Health has their initiative in, each of the agencies

         24  involved on the Task Force does a survey of their

         25  own properties looking for rodents, signs of rodent
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          2  infestation, and they have been doing this on a

          3  quarterly basis.

          4                 The indicators, the new information

          5  we have in the MMR is a result of those surveys.  We

          6  put in the six agencies that have the most

          7  properties within those areas, and we will be

          8  continuously tracking it on a quarterly basis.  They

          9  go out and have to assess their own properties.

         10                 If we do not see any change, as I

         11  have said we have just started, if we do not see any

         12  change or an increase in rodent infestation, instead

         13  of a decrease, obviously we will be taking on the

         14  individual agency for what they are doing in their

         15  areas to ensure that there is a decrease in the

         16  presence of rodents.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So you are

         18  saying the Task Force is the one?

         19                 So then, tell me how much different

         20  is that from having a board that really directs

         21  where each of these different companies may be

         22  going, and making sure that they deal with the

         23  problem?  Tell me how that, to me with the board you

         24  have a better control, rather than having a Task

         25  Force who are going to go and check on these but
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          2  they are going to each of these agencies and may

          3  take a few people from there and handle the problem.

          4                 MS. WEISS:  The Task Force has a lot

          5  of control, or I will say people are cooperating to

          6  do their surveys.

          7                 We do not have a problem with control

          8  with the agencies.  They come every week, we have a

          9  total of 23 agencies who send representatives every

         10  week to the Task Force meeting, and there has never

         11  been a problem getting them to cooperate together to

         12  get this work done, so I do not see how a board

         13  would do it any differently than what we are going

         14  now.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  But the

         16  board would be independent of each of those

         17  agencies.

         18                 MS. WEISS:  There is not one agency

         19  that is in charge, except the Department of Health,

         20  which has the expertise in rodent control.

         21                 All the agencies are fairly equal,

         22  and they do it on a voluntary basis instead of

         23  being, you know somebody ordering them.  They are

         24  doing it on a voluntary basis every week.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Right but
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          2  then, I agree but I see the form of duplication

          3  there because you have all these different agencies

          4  maybe doing the same thing.

          5                 If you have someone that is

          6  controlling, and saying exactly this problem has to

          7  be dealt with, if it is a pest problem that has a

          8  sanitation problem there also, you may want the

          9  Sanitation Department to first remove the garbage,

         10  whatever it is, and at the same time, they have ways

         11  of dealing with pests also, so they can be handling

         12  that problem.  But if you send it to, let us say the

         13  Department of Health, they may go in and put down,

         14  do the pest control without removing the garbage.

         15                 MS. WEISS:  No, I agree with you, and

         16  that is what the Task Force does when we have an

         17  area which we have to assess and take action on.

         18                 All the agencies meet, all the

         19  representatives from the agencies meet at that area,

         20  and everybody is given their responsibility, and

         21  they do it together in a very coordinated manner.

         22                 Correct, that in many cases you first

         23  have to remove the garbage before you can do the

         24  baiting or any other work.              Sanitation

         25  is at these sites when we go out to them, and they
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          2  will take care of the garbage, and then whoever else

          3  is involved would then take on their own

          4  responsibility.

          5                 The agencies know what their

          6  responsibilities are, and they work together to get

          7  it done.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So if fact,

          9  what you are saying is that the Task Force is a

         10  board doing what we want the board to do.

         11                 MS. WEISS:  I do not want to get into

         12  semantics on this, so I really--.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Well, I see

         14  you are saying the same thing that we want to do, it

         15  is just that it is more of an independent body

         16  really making the determination.  You are saying it

         17  is a Task Force, we are saying it is a board, all

         18  right.

         19                 Is there any way we can tell now what

         20  percentage of the complaints or the inquiries has to

         21  do with rats, so that we can show what percentage

         22  increased, or, do you have any way you can tell

         23  that?

         24                 The increase in complaints that we

         25  have, can you say how many or?
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          2                 MS. WEISS:  I think they are all

          3  rats.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  These are

          5  all rats?

          6                 MS. WEISS:  These are all rat

          7  complaints, yes, even though it say pest control,

          8  these are all rat complaints.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So what you

         10  are saying is that we had, what is the cause of that

         11  great increase of rat complaints then?

         12                 If we have that Task Force that was

         13  in place, and seemed to be doing so well, why is it

         14  that we have such a great increase?

         15                 MR. BUTTS:  I think that part of the

         16  increase is that 311 is so effective.  That is my

         17  opinion.  That is what I have been told, and it is

         18  my understanding that across the board there are an

         19  increase in complaints with most city agencies

         20  because of 311, because of its effectiveness.  It is

         21  so user friendly.  You want to make a complaint, you

         22  have got three numbers to dial.  You do not have the

         23  bureaucracy of going through four people or five

         24  people, you call up, you make a central thing, and

         25  then it is given to the person, to the agency where
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          2  the complaint belongs, to where is can be acted

          3  upon.  And that is what we do, we act upon the

          4  complaint when we get it.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  And you are

          6  showing greater response and greater resolution of

          7  these problems in a shorter space of time.

          8                 Are you saying that now?

          9                 MR. BUTTS:  We are trying to do the

         10  best we can do in responding to the problems.  We

         11  are not perfect.  We are trying very hard to become

         12  more efficient, and I think we are.

         13                 The group of people that I am working

         14  with, I am very impressed with their dedication and

         15  their knowledge.  And we are initiating integrated

         16  pest management, more into rodent control in the

         17  City, and I think it is going to work.  I think it

         18  is working.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  All right,

         20  thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  One quick

         22  observation, two quick observations.

         23                 Number one, with regard to the

         24  questioning by my colleague, Christine Quinn, it

         25  occurred me that in the Bronx where there is some
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          2  urgency, especially by comparison to other boroughs,

          3  at least according to you, you would want all hands

          4  on deck and invite everyone to participate

          5  considering the urgency of the matter, and it does

          6  not seem as if we are at that level of urgency where

          7  you want everyone to participate.

          8                 And then, with respect to Council

          9  Member Stewart, it sounds as if we have an agency

         10  voluntary pest control initiative. So we are doing

         11  pest control on a voluntary basis.  That is a little

         12  shocking.

         13                 MS. WEISS:  We are not saying it is a

         14  voluntary basis.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Well, the word

         16  voluntary came up.

         17                 MS. WEISS:  Yes, but the pest

         18  control, the Task Force is a Merrill (phonetic) Task

         19  Force.  It was called together by the Mayor.  People

         20  are there as being told to go there by their

         21  commissioners.

         22                 It is not exactly people raise their

         23  hand and say, "I want to kill rats."

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Okay.

         25                 MS. WEISS:  They basically, everybody
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          2  knows that this is a regular need but I am saying,

          3  and we all know and I am being honest, we all know

          4  we have a lot of meetings that are set up by

          5  different people, and people do not show up.  And I

          6  am saying these people do care because they do come

          7  every week.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  I appreciate

          9  that.

         10                 MS. WEISS:  We do have the people

         11  there.  That is what I meant by voluntary.  Nobody

         12  standing over them with a whip but they, it is a

         13  Merrill Task Force.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Which they

         15  voluntarily attend even as they are appointed by the

         16  Mayor.

         17                 MS. WEISS:  They are appointed to

         18  come by their commissioners.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Just before I

         22  call on Council Member Sears I just want to, not to

         23  belabor the point of the Bronx but the Bronx is the

         24  borough which clearly has the most challenges still

         25  as it relates to the rat and pest problem.  And over

                                                            64

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND HEALTH

          2  half of the Bronx properties failed their follow- up

          3  compliance inspection, which is I think the next

          4  closest, is a 33 percent failure rate in Bushwick

          5  and Bed- Stuy, and then 35 in East and Central

          6  Harlem, so it is a big difference.

          7                 So I got a sense from your testimony

          8  that you are talking about doing more in the Bronx

          9  than you have done, and more than you have done in

         10  other places.

         11                 If you would give me just, at least,

         12  a couple of examples of what is additional that you

         13  are going to do in the Bronx because you talked

         14  about, I do not know what the exact wording was but

         15  coming up with more of a targeted initiative,

         16  expanding on what you have done.  So give me some

         17  examples about what is going to be new strategy-

         18  wise, or dollar- wise, or staff wise, or ad- wise,

         19  or garbage can- wise, or whatever in the Bronx.

         20                 MR. FOGGIN:  The two most tangible

         21  outcomes from what we have discovered in these

         22  data--.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  State your

         24  name again, I am sorry.

         25                 MR. FOGGIN:  Sure, it is Mark Foggin.
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          2                 The two most tangible outcomes have

          3  been to look at levels below that of the entire

          4  initiative area, so it is about 8,400 properties in

          5  the Bronx in the entire initiative area.

          6                 Not all of those area are equally

          7  impacted by rodents, and we can take a look at data

          8  over time to see where there are hot spots of rodent

          9  activity based on previous failures, based on where

         10  we get complaint calls from.  Now we are able to map

         11  that with 311.  It is not something we were able to

         12  do before.

         13                 So, what we are doing is looking at,

         14  almost, targeted areas within the initiative area to

         15  say, "here is a five or seven block area that was

         16  particularly problematic, let us focus our

         17  activities in these areas," including additional

         18  inspections, just on these seven blocks, additional

         19  outreach to the landlords and the supers in this

         20  area, and handing out our rodent- proof garbage cans

         21  in those areas.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  So, I am going

         23  to after Council Member Sears comes back to the

         24  garbage cans but on the other two, give me some

         25  specifics on the increased inspection and increased
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          2  landlord outreach.

          3                 What is the increase?  What

          4  percentage of additional inspections will there be?

          5  And/or how many more inspectors will be assigned to

          6  this area of the Bronx?

          7                 MR. FOGGIN:  I think it is taking the

          8  inspectors that we have there now and focusing them

          9  on these smaller areas so that they are able to,

         10  essentially, add additional resources to those

         11  smaller, higher need areas.

         12                 We have identified the areas, now we

         13  are focusing on having our inspectors begin follow

         14  up inspections in those areas to see has there been

         15  an improvement from what we have done to date, and

         16  if not, where do we continue to focus?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  But that is a

         18  little problematic because it sounds like from what

         19  you just said the places in the Bronx with the

         20  highest level, the target area, are now going to get

         21  extra resources by diverting inspectors from other

         22  parts of the borough.

         23                 MR. FOGGIN:  I would not classify it

         24  as diverting.            What we are doing is using

         25  the resources that we have in a smarter way.  We
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          2  have data that show us where there are particular

          3  problems, even within the initiative area.

          4                 Why would we not focus our resources

          5  in those areas first and most effectively?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Well, so if

          7  that is the right way to look at it, as opposed to

          8  diverting as I looked at, if Gelvina is an inspector

          9  in the targeted area, right?  Let us call it the

         10  problematic area, and I am an inspector in another

         11  part of the Bronx, and you think I can be more

         12  smartly used in Gelvina's area, what number of

         13  compliance or what percentage of complaints has to

         14  exist in my area for you to determine that the

         15  problem in my area is of such a low level, which is

         16  a good thing, that I would be better used in the

         17  targeted Gelvina area?

         18                 MR. FOGGIN:  The staff that were

         19  hired for the initiative are focused on the

         20  initiative area, so we are not talking about moving

         21  inspectors from different parts of the

         22  borough--.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Oh, okay.

         24                 MR. FOGGIN: -- into this area.  We

         25  are talking about first using the inspectors that we
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          2  have dedicated to this area more efficiently, and

          3  getting more effectiveness out of them by having

          4  them focus on the hot spots.

          5                 Then we will reevaluate at that point

          6  and see, are additional resources from different

          7  parts of the city needed.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  But can I just

          9  say something, with all due respect, that is worse.

         10  Because at least in the other way I might have been

         11  a Riverdale inspector, you know what I mean, where

         12  then it made more sense for me to go here.  But now,

         13  you are saying that in this targeted area, which is

         14  a targeted area because it is a problem, and it is a

         15  particularly targeted area that is still the most

         16  problematic targeted area in the city, but some

         17  parts of it, all parts of it are bad, rat- wise, but

         18  some parts of it are really bad.  So the people that

         19  work in the bad section are now going to all go work

         20  in the really bad section, which seems to me then we

         21  are going to have to shift everybody back to the bad

         22  section, which will then be the really bad section

         23  when the really bad section became the bad section.

         24  Technical pest terms there.

         25                 MR. BUTTS:  May I respond to that?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Sure.

          3                 MR. BUTTS:  What we have done is we

          4  have assigned what we believe are sufficient

          5  resources to these areas that are of major concern.

          6                 What we are in the process of doing

          7  now is we are in the process of assigning our

          8  inspectors and our exterminators to a certain

          9  region.  We originally were going to, hear me out on

         10  this one.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  It views by

         12  region.

         13                 MR. BUTTS:  I am sorry, community

         14  board, for example there is no sense of ownership by

         15  the inspectors or by the exterminators.

         16                 So what we are in the process or

         17  doing, and initially what we were going to do is

         18  assign one exterminator and one inspector to a

         19  particular community board, or group of community

         20  boards.

         21                 We discussed it internally, and what

         22  we are going to do is form a region of community

         23  boards, and there will be several inspectors and

         24  several exterminators assigned to that group of

         25  community boards.  We believe that is going to give
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          2  our people an ownership in the area.  It will

          3  improve communication among the people in the

          4  community.  It will allow us to deploy our resources

          5  much better.

          6                 If there is an emergency, we will

          7  utilize, take those people from that particular area

          8  for a brief period of time to address a problem.

          9  But that is going to be the general order of, the

         10  way we handle business.

         11                 In the initiative areas, there are

         12  people assigned already and that we believe, or that

         13  there is a sufficient number of amount of resources

         14  that are assigned to where the job can get done

         15  appropriately, or properly.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Just one

         17  question.

         18                 So there is no extra resources going

         19  into the targeted area in the Bronx from what was

         20  there when it started?

         21                 MR. BUTTS:  I think that there are

         22  more resources now than when it initially started.

         23  I do not know what the number was but what we have

         24  done is to gauge how much is needed, and then to

         25  send that amount of resources to that area.  But we
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          2  do not want to neglect the rest of the City either.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  No, no, no but

          4  I am sorry, so the targeted area has been targeted

          5  in the Bronx for a bit of time now, and in your

          6  testimony you said you are going to expand on that.

          7                 So, does that included more resources

          8  to the targeted area or just redirecting the

          9  resources within the targeted area?

         10                 MR. BUTTS:  It is going to included,

         11  if expansion is necessary, it will included, the

         12  expansion will include garbage cans, it will include

         13  us focusing on this area and trying to get the

         14  problem solved.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  So does that

         16  mean then that the Department will be sending more,

         17  will be assigning more inspectors to the targeted

         18  area over what the number was when the area was

         19  first designated a targeted area, or are you just

         20  going to refocus the inspectors who are already

         21  assigned to the targeted area?

         22                 MR. BUTTS:  We are right now

         23  refocusing the efforts of those inspectors in that

         24  area, and it is one of these things where we know we

         25  have to get the job done and what we are trying to
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          2  do is utilize our resources as wisely and as

          3  efficiently as we possibly can.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  With all due

          5  respect, it sounds a little bit like we are just

          6  rearranging the deck chairs on the Titanic, and I do

          7  not think that that is what is needed in this area

          8  that has been the most challenging even with extra

          9  resources. I think it needs, this neighborhood,

         10  given the ongoing challenges and the very high

         11  failure rate upon reinspection, it needs even more

         12  resources, and I hope that is something we can look

         13  at as we move forward over the next few months and

         14  head into the budget process.

         15                 MR. BUTTS:  Thank you.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you.

         17                 Council Member Sears.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you,

         19  Madam Chair.

         20                 It is good to see you again, Dr.

         21  Butts.

         22                 I have to say, the short time that

         23  you have been with the Department, your managing to

         24  catch up pretty quickly, so I think that is pretty

         25  commendable.

                                                            73

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND HEALTH

          2                 MR. BUTTS:  Thank you ma'am.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I have a, well

          4  several but I will reduce them, you tell me when did

          5  you distribute this and who has received it around

          6  the City?  Because it is the first time, I think,

          7  any of us in the Committee are seeing it, so I would

          8  just like to--.

          9                 MR. BUTTS:  Let me make a comment.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Yes.

         11                 MR. BUTTS:  What we would love is if

         12  you want some of these, and I know I am not

         13  answering your question directly, but this is--.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  No you are

         15  not.  I would like an answer to the question.

         16                 MR. BUTTS:  I am passing the message.

         17    We would really like to give you as many of

         18  these--.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  And then I

         20  will volunteer my services.

         21                 MR. BUTTS: -- as many of these as

         22  possible to hand out.

         23                 We started handing these out in what,

         24  June or July? About July.

         25                 We also have had a, they are both in
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          2  Spanish and in English.  I think the Spanish came a

          3  little bit later.

          4                 We have also had a program where we

          5  have had posters in the subway, posters on buses.

          6  We are excited about trying to get the message out.

          7  There are brochures for tenants.  There are

          8  brochures for landlords.  And if we can just get the

          9  people to read these and work with us, then I think

         10  we will be a lot better off.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I would agree

         12  with that.

         13                 I think distribution if probably one

         14  of the key things but also, I was reading some of

         15  it, listening, and you have about leak- proof

         16  plastic bags, and that rats do go through plastic

         17  bags.

         18                 MR. BUTTS:  Yes, ma'am.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  And that is

         20  advisable to place them in trash cans, the plastic

         21  bags in trash cans.

         22                 I do not speak for the rest of the

         23  City, although I have been in all five boroughs at

         24  different times, I would be hard bent to find the

         25  plastic bags that are in trash cans.
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          2                 When you get out at a certain time

          3  when it is pick up, in whatever community it is, you

          4  can see row on row on row of plastic bags.  I think

          5  that a trash can would be outstanding, and the

          6  reason I raise that is because wherever these are

          7  given, this is really and truly not being done,

          8  which I think reduces how realistic suggestions and

          9  advise may be.  And I do not say that critically,

         10  although it may sound that way.  But, people reading

         11  this and the property owners and the custodians,

         12  whatever those buildings have, that is one thing

         13  that they would absolutely ignore.

         14                 So, do you suggest things, or are

         15  there certain rules that absolutely everybody has

         16  got to abide by when it comes to packaging the

         17  trash?  Because I can walk through commercial areas,

         18  I do not know if you keep track of the private

         19  carters, but when you talk about trash and

         20  overloading, and rats getting into them, I can tell

         21  you Dr. Butts, you do not have to live any place but

         22  in your own communities where you have a lot of

         23  restaurants, and you have a thriving commercial

         24  area, and you have a high density of population, it

         25  is not specific to one borough.  And the rats are a
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          2  problem all over, and they certainly are a problem

          3  where major construction is going on as well.

          4                 So I mean, I have tons of questions

          5  but I am just not, in the brevity of time, one is,

          6  do you meet with the private carters because they

          7  are an eyesore?

          8                 It is stated that there are about,

          9  not by you but, what I was reading about 5,800 of

         10  pest- proof trash cans that have been distributed

         11  through the City.  Do you have any idea if they are

         12  in all five boroughs, and what has been the success

         13  of those trash cans?

         14                 So that you put them in, does

         15  Sanitation go through a tracking of that because you

         16  talk about the Task Force, I would think that is

         17  something that is discussed in the Task Force, and

         18  just how successful they basically have been?  And I

         19  know that the issue has come up about your Task

         20  Force, and I do not know how many agencies sit on

         21  that but I would think the Fire Department.  I would

         22  think the Police Department.  I would think that

         23  the, besides the obvious ones--.

         24                 MR. BUTTS:  There are 23 agencies.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  There are 23
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          2  agencies then. The Buildings Department sits in on

          3  that.

          4                 MR. BUTTS:  Yes, yes ma'am.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  All right.  It

          6  would seem that what this proposed law is trying to

          7  do is to pull together and have one main area, one

          8  main vehicle be responsible for the administration

          9  of the complete implementation of what may be

         10  mandated because there is really no`if's or but's'

         11  about just what we do about rats.  And I mean the

         12  communities, I am not just speaking about your

         13  agency, about the communities, because this

         14  war,`trash', is a real, real problem, and unless

         15  there are very specific things that are mandated and

         16  not suggested, they are not going to take the

         17  suggestions because it means more money.  And then

         18  maybe the City has to look at how they help to

         19  subsidize, maybe, I do not know, I am not being

         20  constructive in that sense right now, but in any

         21  area.

         22                 I know I have a major Brooklyn-

         23  Queens Expressway construction, has not been without

         24  its rodent problems, going on and surrounding within

         25  the immediate communities of Jackson Heights.  I do
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          2  not know, and I know the state has responsibilities

          3  for it but who monitors them, outside of the local

          4  officials that do it because they are inundated with

          5  rodent complaints?

          6                 So does your Task Force included any

          7  agency that is having these major, major engineering

          8  projects?

          9                 MS. WEISS:  Well, DDC is part of our

         10  Task Force, which is involved in most of the

         11  construction, the City construction, in the City and

         12  they, as a matter of fact, as an outcome of the Task

         13  Force, they have changed their contracts to require

         14  abatement review of the area prior to construction

         15  to check for evidence of rodents, abatement, and

         16  abatement during construction, and to check after

         17  the construction to make sure it is clean.

         18                 So, we do have the agencies involved

         19  with construction in our Task Force.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I know I

         21  lumped some questions together.

         22                 What about the 5,800 baskets, trash

         23  cans, containers that have been distributed

         24  throughout the City?  Or maybe there is a

         25  concentration in one or two boroughs, I do not know.
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          2                 MR. FOGGIN:  There is a concentration

          3  in the three initiative areas, so it is Bedford

          4  Stuyvesant, Bushwick and Brooklyn continuing the

          5  work that we started there with a pilot project we

          6  had started three years ago, East and Central

          7  Harlem, and parts of the South Bronx.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Okay, and have

          9  they been successful in terms of really what the

         10  objective was by replacing these receptacles?

         11                 MR. FOGGIN:  One of the things we

         12  started when I began in the program about six months

         13  ago, was to focus where we place those cans so that

         14  we were sure that we would get the best bang for the

         15  buck rather than hand out a can here and a can

         16  there.              We tried to pick several

         17  contiguous blocks where we knew there were problems

         18  with the way trash was being stored, and that was

         19  contributing to the rodent problem, and try and

         20  replace all of the cans in that area with these

         21  rodent- proof cans.

         22                 We are in the process now of

         23  beginning another set of inspections in those areas

         24  to compare before and after to see what the

         25  improvement was, but I can tell you that in this
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          2  pilot that we had started in Bushwick with some CDC

          3  funding we had received a couple of years ago, we

          4  show an almost 50 percent drop in the number of

          5  rodent failures that we had in that community, so we

          6  are hopeful.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Okay, now

          8  information like that, when you have your Task Force

          9  is that when you get reports?           In other

         10  words, in monitoring the success of these trash

         11  cans, is that an issue that would come before the

         12  Task Force, so that Sanitation would report to you

         13  just how they observe the success of that project?

         14                 MR. FOGGIN:  We share that

         15  information weekly, including all of the data that

         16  are in the report are all shared with our Task Force

         17  weekly, and discussed and used to make management

         18  decisions about how we focus our activities both

         19  within the Department of Health, and in partnership

         20  with the other agencies on the Task Force.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  And just one

         22  last, and I will not pursue it, what about the

         23  private carters?

         24                 What relationship do you have with

         25  them in terms of actually their attitude towards
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          2  health?

          3                 MR. FOGGIN:  You know, it is a good

          4  point, and I think we need to take a look more

          5  closely at how we interact with them.

          6                 So we will make a note to follow up.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Well, do you

          8  track with them at all?  I mean you know--.

          9                 MR. BUTTS:  Yes, ma'am.  The food

         10  service's or the food inspection group in

         11  Environmental Services does permit and track those

         12  people twice a year I am told.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Twice a year?

         14                 MR. BUTTS:  Yes, ma'am.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Well, I can

         16  tell you, I have absolutely been very successful in

         17  getting a part of my district zero tolerance for

         18  dumpsters because not only were they rat infested,

         19  have never been washed, and there have been these

         20  complete discrepancies between the merchants and the

         21  private carters as to whom is responsible for the

         22  cleanliness of them, the maintaining of them.

         23                 It would seem that the Department of

         24  Health, with your agency and the Health Department,

         25  would be able to come up with some very specific
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          2  laws that maybe come out of the Health Committee in

          3  terms of just what is expected of these private

          4  carters.  And that is something, maybe, the Council

          5  has to look at. Because they are not listening to

          6  anybody.  They are not cleaning up after themselves.

          7    And they are giving the merchants a very hard

          8  time, and for me, they are a nest, a breeding

          9  grounds for every bit of contamination you can think

         10  of for all four seasons, and it would seem that you

         11  would be key, a very key instrument in having them

         12  meet responsibilities and reducing this health

         13  problem.

         14                 MR. BUTTS:  We will address that, and

         15  also your comment about Jackson Heights, the

         16  construction that is going on there, we will address

         17  that.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  They have been

         19  very cooperative but they really need to see

         20  somebody over them, and I really mean that.

         21                 MR. BUTTS:  But we will address that

         22  also, ma'am.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  All right.

         24  Would you let me know what you do about the private

         25  carters on the Committee?
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          2                 MR. BUTTS:  Yes, ma'am.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you.

          4                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  I want to ask

          6  two quick questions, one with regard to the

          7  brochure.

          8                 You have here,`you may also use

          9  tightly- tied, leak proof plastic bags', as you know

         10  the main culprit in terms of feeding the rats are

         11  these plastic bags, especially when they are not put

         12  into garbage cans, and unfortunately, we have always

         13  changed, allows a landlord to simply use the plastic

         14  bag.

         15                 Do you think that was a good change?

         16                 Do you think that it is good that

         17  people only use plastic bags for garbage

         18  containerization?

         19                 MR. BUTTS:  Excuse me, I think that

         20  had to do with incineration laws, and let me just

         21  back up and--.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Do not do that

         23  to me.  I just want to know--.

         24                 MR. BUTTS:  Oh, okay, I am sorry.  I

         25  am trying to dodge your, I am trying to dodge
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          2  answering yes or no.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  I know you are,

          4  and I appreciate that because it is, but it is a key

          5  question, it is a key concern because it is the

          6  plastic bag that has become the common form of

          7  containerizing garbage.  It is now the feast for the

          8  rats.  It is the breeding ground for the rats in New

          9  York City.               Your brochure announces

         10  that you can use plastic bags.  Not that you do not

         11  follow it with some recommendation that it should be

         12  put in a garbage can but, just to begin with, do you

         13  think it is a good idea that you are allowed to

         14  simply use, and only use black plastic bags to

         15  containerize garbage?

         16                 I know you are a professional in this

         17  area, you are very involved, you are very concerned.

         18

         19                 What would you say?

         20                 MR. BUTTS:  We would like to see the

         21  people using the plastic bags put them in garbage

         22  cans until they are ready to put out.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  As it stands

         24  now, you do not have to do that.

         25                 Do you think that is good public
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          2  policy, or bad public policy?

          3                 MR. BUTTS:  We would prefer that they

          4  put the bags in a garbage can.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Do you think it

          6  is bad public policy that you are allowed to do

          7  that?

          8                 MR. BUTTS:  I do not know if I can

          9  answer that.  I cannot answer that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  All right, I

         11  just want to be clear that, you cannot answer it

         12  because you do not know, or because politically it

         13  is not as sensitive, or what is the reason?

         14                 MR. BUTTS:  I just do not think it is

         15  a good idea for me to answer the question.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Okay, very

         17  good.

         18                 Because I, we have legislation that

         19  challenges, this changing the law which does not

         20  simply reflect the fact that the compactor changes,

         21  the incinerator changes but this is the key problem

         22  we have in our communities.

         23                 Black plastic bags every block

         24  throughout the City, throughout the Bronx, landlords

         25  just allowing the garbage to be done that way, you
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          2  can never win like this.  And you can never win

          3  until you take a position that says,`this is no

          4  longer good public policy'.  That anybody with a

          5  black plastic bag that is not containerized, will be

          6  fined or sent to jail, or whatever the appropriate

          7  answer may be.

          8                 Do you think it should be, the law

          9  that all black plastic bags be containerized?

         10                 MR. BUTTS:  Until they are picked up.

         11    When you put them out on the curb because --.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Okay, so black

         13  plastic bags should be used but they have to be

         14  containerized.

         15                 MR. BUTTS:  Until you place the

         16  plastic bag by itself on the curb for pickup.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Would you be

         18  supportive of such a law?

         19                 MR. BUTTS:  I would have to see how

         20  it is written.           CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  But,

         21  okay--.

         22                 MR. BUTTS:  If you can keep the

         23  garbage bag in the container, in the garbage

         24  container as long as you can, until it is time for

         25  pickup--.

                                                            87

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND HEALTH

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Fine.

          3                 MR. BUTTS:  And some people, you may

          4  have a

          5  3 o'clock pick up and somebody leaves for work at 8

          6  o'clock in the morning, so they have got to put the

          7  garbage bag out--.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  I understand.

          9  What I am trying to do with you is I am trying to

         10  move us away from this, I am trying to move us away

         11  from this practice that is legal, that you do not

         12  have to put the garbage in the garbage can.  That

         13  you do not have to put the black plastic bag in the

         14  garbage, you do not have to, and, your job is

         15  impossible to conquer.  Your task is impossible as

         16  long as a landlord can take the garbage and just

         17  leave it outside because all they are doing is

         18  inviting rats to come to a banquet.

         19                 So, what would you suggest legally be

         20  required to prevent that from happening?

         21                 MR. BUTTS:  We would like to see the

         22  garbage be put in these heavy- duty garbage bags,

         23  and kept in a container until it is time for them to

         24  be picked up, you know, as close to pick up as

         25  possible.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Okay, would you

          3  be willing to legally require that?

          4                 MR. BUTTS:  I cannot answer the, Sir,

          5  sorry.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Okay, no

          7  problem.

          8                 I just want to ask one final question

          9  as it relates to collateral damage in the war on

         10  rats.

         11                 A report that points out that where

         12  we are using rat poison, children are being

         13  poisoned.  Rat poison has harmed children in all

         14  ethnic communities but poor African- American and

         15  Latino children are effected disproportionately.

         16  This is a study that was brought out by the West

         17  Harlem Action, and is presently a Federal District

         18  court case, and I just wanted to know if you are

         19  aware of this, and what is your position, and how we

         20  are dealing with this reality.

         21                 MR. BUTTS:  Yes, we are aware of it,

         22  and one of the things that we will do is we will

         23  move towards using products with a bittering agent

         24  in it.  We are already using some of it, but we will

         25  try to move to completely using products with the
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          2  bittering agent.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  What is the

          4  timeframe towards that end?

          5                 MR. BUTTS:  I do not know, it will be

          6  as soon as possible but, I mean, for me to give you

          7  a date I am shooting from the hip, and I would

          8  rather not do that.

          9                 Right now, I do not know but I can

         10  tell you for a fact we will move as quickly towards

         11  a bittering agent in the product as we possibly can.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Okay, well now

         13  you know this is a touchy subject because of the

         14  discriminatory impact that it is having, as pointed

         15  out in this article in the lawsuit.

         16                 So, you are going to have to be much

         17  more conscience about when we are going to convert

         18  to this bittering agent because you cannot just say

         19  you do not know.

         20                 We have to have a plan with a

         21  timeframe in terms of when this is all going to be

         22  completed, so people can have some sense of

         23  confidence that there is a seriousness on your part.

         24                 MR. BUTTS:  Let me answer your

         25  question a couple of ways.
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          2                 Number one, I am going to ask our

          3  people not to order any more product that does not

          4  have bittering agent in it.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Are you going

          6  to ask them as of today?

          7                 MR. BUTTS:  Yes, Sir.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Okay.

          9                 MR. BUTTS:  Yes, Sir.

         10                 That was part of the article, and it

         11  is my understanding that the product can be used

         12  with bittering agent, and not have a detrimental

         13  effect on control of the rodents.

         14                 It is my understanding that there are

         15  no cases of reported of poisonings.  There are cases

         16  of children, there are cases of people being

         17  exposed.

         18                 I have asked this question over and

         19  over,`have we had any problems with people being

         20  poisoned in New York City'.  I have been told,`no',

         21  and I can tell you that is the last thing in the

         22  world I want to happen is for a child or a person to

         23  be poisoned by this material.

         24                 By the way, we have implemented what

         25  we call`best practices', and that is teaching people
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          2  how to effectively apply this material, which

          3  minimizes risk.  Those are in place and we are

          4  following those, and we are going to try to get

          5  those taught throughout the City.  But this is

          6  something that we are aware of, and we are taking

          7  very seriously.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Okay, very

          9  good.

         10                 This is a very, very big matter, and

         11  it does not simply relate to you and the products

         12  you buy but it relates to the industry in general,

         13  and we want to make sure that at least in terms of

         14  the City, that is not perpetuating the problem in

         15  terms of its practices and of what it is buying and

         16  using.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 MR. BUTTS:  Thank you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I want say we

         20  have also been joined by Council Member Simcha

         21  Felder of Brooklyn.

         22                 I have a couple of final, quick kind

         23  of questions.

         24                 Can you tell me what the plan is to

         25  distribute the 1,800 remaining garbage cans by
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          2  December 1st?

          3                 MR. FOGGIN:  All but a couple of

          4  hundred, which are sort of left over have been

          5  distributed as of last week.

          6                 I mean, we are less than 200 at this

          7  point, just sort of scattered around the different

          8  places we have been storing them, we will finish

          9  those off in the next couple of days.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  We are taken

         11  for a little bit on the DOH, MH report, there were

         12  4,000 that were given out, tell us a little bit

         13  about the 1,600 that have gone out between then and

         14  now.

         15                 MR. FOGGIN:  They are all going to

         16  these targeted areas within the initiative areas we

         17  talked about.

         18                 We can get you a list of the

         19  boundaries of the areas that we were looking at.

         20  These are the places that we will be following up

         21  with to focus our efforts more.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  That would be

         23  great.

         24                 And you tell us that of those 1,600,

         25  not just that they went in those areas, but how many
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          2  went in each area.

          3                 MR. FOGGIN:  We can get a breakdown

          4  for each one.            It is not like there is,

          5  sort of, it went to a different class of places, we

          6  had distributed about 4,000 by the time we published

          7  the report, we finished the other 1,600 in

          8  additional target areas.  They were not different

          9  groups of places, they were just, as we identify

         10  other hot spots we want to address, we have been

         11  handing them out along the way.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Oh, so they

         13  are not necessarily South Bronx, Bed- Stuy, you are

         14  not in the--.

         15                 MR. FOGGIN:  The majority have gone

         16  to the Bronx and Brooklyn.

         17                 Brooklyn because the area that was

         18  selected was so much larger than the areas, and

         19  Bronx because that is where we have the biggest

         20  problem.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  And in

         22  Brooklyn it went to the Bushwick, Bed- Stuy areas?

         23                 MR. FOGGIN:  Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Okay.  I just

         25  want ask you a question a little more broadly about
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          2  the bill that we have been discussing, and I know

          3  that the Administration has expressed concerns, and

          4  says that the bill is duplicative and that some

          5  specific language was forwarded from the

          6  Administration at the end of last week, which we

          7  very much appreciate.

          8                 I wanted to try to get some sense

          9  from you all about what are the other changes that

         10  you would need to see in this bill for it to be a

         11  piece of legislation that the Administration could

         12  support.

         13                 MS. WEISS:  Well, we have not seen, I

         14  have not seen the new bill, a version but we have

         15  talked about, among ourselves and with the Task

         16  Force, we can agree with codifying the Task Force as

         17  it is, and setting up an advisory committee to the

         18  Task Force of the people that are mentioned in the

         19  bill.  But, as I have said, we have not seen the

         20  latest bill.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Right, sorry

         22  if I was not clear, I was not asking you to comment

         23  on the`A' version but just more looking for any

         24  other concerns or specifics or guidance from you

         25  about what would need changing for it to be
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          2  something you support.

          3                 So, just kind of set aside, if you

          4  will, the`A' version at the moment.

          5                 MS. WEISS:  As I mentioned, it would

          6  be the codification of the Task Force as it exists

          7  now, and an advisory committee, advisory group to

          8  the Task Force, and we have to obviously look at the

          9  bill when it came out.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  No, no, no, of

         11  course.

         12                 MS. WEISS:  Those are the two

         13  elements we can agree with.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Okay, thank

         15  you.

         16                 Do any other council members have any

         17  other final questions?

         18                 Okay, thank you very much.

         19                 We are next going to call up

         20  representatives from District Council 37, who

         21  represent, obviously, the workers who do the work in

         22  question.

         23                 Chris Stella, Vice President of Local

         24  768, and Henry Garedo, Associate Director of

         25  District Council 37, and if I could just ask while
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          2  those folks are making their way up to the table if

          3  either Ceceil Corbin- Mark (phonetic) is here or

          4  Mary Gemson- Head (phonetic) is here or Ona

          5  Chattergie (phonetic) is here, if any of those three

          6  folks are here, if they could just go over and see

          7  David Pristin at the Sergeant's table over there.

          8                 Otherwise if Chris and Henry could

          9  come up to the table, that would be great, and

         10  whoever wants to go first, go right ahead.

         11                 MR. GAREDO:  I will start.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Oh, I am

         13  sorry, the Gov. Ops Committee swears folks in, so

         14  just hang on one second.

         15                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Good

         16  afternoon, could you each raise your right hand?

         17                 Do you solemnly swear or affirm that

         18  the testimony you are about to give is the truth,

         19  the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         20                 MR. GAREDO:  We do.

         21                 MR. STELLA:  We do.

         22                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Thank you,

         23  before testifying, please state your name and the

         24  association that you are affiliated with.

         25                 MR. GAREDO:  My name is Henry Garedo.
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          2

          3                 I am the Assistant Associate Director

          4  of District Council 37.

          5                 MR. STELLA:  My name is Chris Stella.

          6                 I am the First Vice President of

          7  Local 768, delegate to DC 37.

          8                 I am also employed as an exterminator

          9  with the New York City Department of Health.

         10                 MR. GAREDO:  Good afternoon.  First I

         11  would like to start by thanking Chairman Bill

         12  Perkins, and Chairwoman Christine Quinn, as well as

         13  the other members of the committees for allowing us

         14  to testify this afternoon.

         15                 Over the last two years, I have been

         16  involved with a lot of research for District Council

         17  37.  With me today, we have Chris Stella, which as

         18  he mentioned, is First Vice President of one of our

         19  Locals, Local 768.

         20                 I am going to speak to you today from

         21  the heart because what I heard here from the

         22  Administration, does not necessarily agree with what

         23  is actually happening out there.

         24                 As I mentioned before, District

         25  Council 37 represents two Locals in the City, Local
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          2  768 and the Department of Health, and Local 1067,

          3  which represents the exterminators in the New York

          4  City Department of Education.

          5                 Despite what you heard here today,

          6  and a lot of the announcements that you have heard

          7  in the press, the fact is that the Administration

          8  has not followed through when a lot of the promises

          9  are made public in relationship to pest control.

         10                 We honestly believe that the creation

         11  of an independent board is long overdue.

         12                 For instance, it has been publicized

         13  that the Administration is going to make pest

         14  control one of its priorities for the quality of

         15  life issues.  But the reality is that the funding

         16  for staffing has decreased from the year 2001.

         17                 Most recently in December of 2002 for

         18  instance, the New York City Department of Education

         19  laid off six pest control technicians out of 18.  We

         20  had 18 to do 1,200 schools, they laid off 30 percent

         21  of the staff that we had there, and then never re

         22  called one of those individuals.

         23                 Since then, the Department of Health

         24  and Mental Hygiene has also laid off 38 pest

         25  controls aids, and five supervisors, thirty- eight.
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          2                 Now through the great work of the

          3  City Council and a lot of the people who are in this

          4  room, the City Council restored the money for the

          5  cuts that the Department of Health took in the year

          6  2003.

          7                 However, they did not recall one pest

          8  control aid from the group.  They did not recall one

          9  supervisor from that group.

         10                 Overall since the year 1997, the

         11  number of pest control aids has gone from

         12  approximately 200 to 94.  The number of supervisors

         13  has decreased from over 50 to about 32.

         14                 In the Bronx for instance, and

         15  Councilwoman Quinn was referring to the Bronx as one

         16  of the problem areas, Chris works in the Bronx site,

         17  we have gone from about 32 technicians to less than

         18  20.

         19                 Now, I mention this because the

         20  Administration realized there are problem areas,

         21  everybody has identified these as problem areas.

         22  When the realities of the funding--.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Let me ask a

         24  question.  I am sorry to interrupt.

         25                 So from 32 to 20 in the Bronx, as of
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          2  when?

          3                 MR. GAREDO:  As of this physical

          4  year, we have gone down to 20.  We had 32 last year,

          5  in 2003.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Since the

          7  initiative began?

          8                 MR. GAREDO:  That is correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Okay.

         10                 MR. GAREDO:  But as I mentioned

         11  before, that is not just the Bronx.  The problems

         12  for staffing has gone systemic, we have gone from

         13  200 to about 94 pest control aids throughout the

         14  City.

         15                 We do support, in District Council

         16  37, we believe that the creation of the board, it is

         17  a great idea.

         18                 One of the things that we would like

         19  to see the board to do is to review the compliance

         20  with all city and state law.  And I want to cite an

         21  example that we had about a year and a half ago.

         22                 When the Department of Education

         23  decided they would lay off these pest control

         24  technicians that we have, they expressed a changing

         25  policy that they would be utilizing vendors to
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          2  provide pest control services to the schools.

          3                 We raised the issue in one of our

          4  research papers, one of the white papers, that the

          5  Department of Education was in violation of the law

          6  by hiring contractors that were not certified.     Under

          7  the New York State Conservancy Law, Section 325, all

          8  city hospitals, schools and day cares, are required

          9  to provide a certified, Integrated Pest Management

         10  Technician in order to provide the pest control

         11  services.

         12                 What was happening in a lot of the

         13  cases that we saw was that they would hire a main

         14  contractor with a person who was filling out the

         15  paperwork, had a Integrated Pest Control licenses,

         16  but then they would sub- contract to another agency

         17  in which there was no certification.

         18                 We also found they were using harmful

         19  pesticides around the kids in schools.

         20                 Specifically, there was a contractor

         21  by the name of Allied Pest Control Management that

         22  was coming out of Connecticut, and there has been a

         23  lot said about TemCo (phonetic) and Johnson Control

         24  and all these facility management companies doing

         25  the custodial services in the schools.  We found
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          2  that they were charging the City at the time about

          3  $400 a school, and then subcontracting to this

          4  vendor.  And, in reality, our pest control

          5  technicians at the Department of Education were

          6  doing it for less than $34.  So from $400 to $34, we

          7  found they were not certified. Our people were

          8  certified.  They were using their own cars.  I mean

          9  they were doing a lot of stuff far beyond what they

         10  were required to do, including educating the public,

         11  the parents and a number of other issues in terms of

         12  prevention.

         13                 Another area that we think that the

         14  board will have a big, big, big change would be in

         15  the implementation of across the board policies.

         16                 As I said, it is evident that when we

         17  see our pest control technicians from one agency to

         18  the other, and even from one borough to the other,

         19  that the implementation of the actual policies

         20  varies increasingly, I mean deeply.

         21                 You go to Housing for instance, there

         22  seems to be one policy to deal around children and

         23  tenants.  You go to the Department of

         24  Transportation, they use a different policy.  And

         25  the Department of Ed, every agency seems to have
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          2  their own way of dealing with it, and as I said,

          3  even within the same agency itself, you find

          4  differences across the different boroughs.

          5                 The other thing that was mentioned is

          6  the issue of redundancy.  I think that one of the

          7  problems that we see, and our members have seen out

          8  there is that they would be sent to a site, and then

          9  they would find that somebody else from DOT or from

         10  the DOE fund, or from another agency was already

         11  there.  And there was no indication, across agency,

         12  no communication at all, and so, that person could

         13  be better utilized by being sent to an area that has

         14  not been serviced,

         15                 And then finally, I want to raise the

         16  issue of educational policy.  It is very clear that

         17  when you have this agency in the Task Force, that

         18  they have a mandate, that they understand that they

         19  have to create public education.  But a lot of the

         20  times what we find is that are very afraid of

         21  bringing real tough issues to the public, the issue

         22  of utilizing hard pesticides for instance to the

         23  neighbors, and when you are spraying and when you

         24  are doing a lot of the practices that are no longer

         25  used because they pose a health risk to the public,
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          2  and I just want to express that it is very hard for

          3  each agency to police itself, and I think the board

          4  will do that.  And so all the council rises in

          5  support of the board.

          6                 Chris has some testimony as well on

          7  behalf of its members.

          8                 MR. STELLA:  Thank you.  My name is

          9  Chris Stella. I am First Vice President of Local

         10  768, Delegate to DC 37.  I am an exterminator for

         11  the Department of Health and Mental Hygiene and a

         12  New Yorker.

         13                 Ladies and gentlemen, and

         14  distinguished members of this Body, thank you for

         15  allowing me the time to speak on a subject that I

         16  have personal first- hand knowledge of, and like my

         17  colleague here, I rise in support of this Intro.

         18  Number 121 also.

         19                 Aside from representing the members

         20  of my particular Local, it helps staff the

         21  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene, for

         22  example, the inspectors, the exterminators, the city

         23  pest control aids, and the larger body of 125,000

         24  plus members who are also residents and tax payers

         25  of this city, I am also a professional exterminator
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          2  employed by the City of New York, Department of

          3  Mental Health and Hygiene for eight years, and have

          4  worked in the private sector in New York City since

          5  the early 90's.

          6                 As an exterminator, I might see

          7  things from a different perspective and have

          8  questions raised in my mind by the proposed creation

          9  of a "Pest Control Board" as laid out in Intro.

         10  Number 121.

         11                 First I would like to address the

         12  problems I encounter on a daily basis.

         13                 My office is located in the Bronx.

         14  Contrary to postings in the media, the Bronx is no

         15  better and no worse than any other part of the City.

         16    I have feedback from Department of Health and

         17  Mental Hygiene colleagues who have worked in other

         18  boroughs. The problems are both invasive and

         19  systemic citywide.

         20                 Garbage cans and posters are a nice

         21  gesture, but we are still reactive instead of

         22  proactive as an agency.  We are woefully under-

         23  staffed and even under- funded.

         24                 Even after this council re- instated

         25  the budget for pest control, there has been no re-
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          2  hiring or re- staffing of recently laid off staff

          3  members.

          4                 Fines for inspections are too low,

          5  fines for exterminations are antiquated.

          6                 As a result, landlord and property

          7  owners look at these fines as a cost of doing

          8  business in the City of New York rather than fixing

          9  the problem.  Basements of buildings housing illegal

         10  cubicle dwellings with no sanitation, food vendors

         11  housing their carts and preparing food in basements,

         12  chickens and livestock being warehoused in basements

         13  of multiple dwellings all contribute greatly to the

         14  rodent population, not to mention the diseases

         15  endemic to these situations.  Even in multiple

         16  dwellings with a few minor problems and in decent

         17  repair, all it takes is two or three tenants to

         18  start "air- mailing" their garbage into vacant lots

         19  adjacent to the building.  Vacant lots and

         20  properties surrounding "good" buildings become

         21  dumping and hence breeding grounds for all sorts of

         22  vermin.

         23                 We have to make everyone responsible

         24  either in the pocketbook or legally.  That includes

         25  other agencies.
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          2                 Lastly, I would hope that the hiring

          3  of licensed professional pest control members to

          4  this board.  Whether they come from existing

          5  agencies, the private sector, or academia are

          6  allowed to make hard and difficult recommendations

          7  to this board that will be immediately implemented

          8  or run the risk of continuing past practices and

          9  that there will be more than enough funding to staff

         10  this proposed agency and that any and all gains that

         11  have been achieved through collective bargaining

         12  will not be undermined or changed.

         13                 Thank you again for taking the time

         14  to listen to my thoughts.

         15                 I will do the best I can to answer

         16  any questions you might have.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you.  I

         18  just want to ask, and I wish I had asked this of the

         19  Administration but we are going to do a follow up

         20  letter, and also if the folks who are still here

         21  from the Administration and the folks are folks from

         22  both the Department and Legislative Affairs could

         23  also pass this along as a question.

         24                 So, for either one of you, the money

         25  that the Council put back in, I just want to
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          2  understand what you are saying, it sounds like what

          3  you are saying is that the monies just basically

          4  just sat there for two years and not been used, or

          5  do you believe that the money was used for something

          6  else aside from what we actually restored it for?

          7                 MR. GAREDO:  Well, shortly after the

          8  Council restored the money to the agency, we met

          9  with the Department of Health on several occasions.

         10  I was present at the time we basically went to the

         11  agency and said, "Look your funding has been

         12  restored, what about calling our folks that have

         13  been laid off?"

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Right.

         15                 MR. GAREDO:  They said, "well, we do

         16  not believe that the funding was restored for these

         17  positions".  And, that was strange because--.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Who did you

         19  meet with, do you recall?

         20                 MR. GAREDO:  We met with several

         21  heads.  I can provide you the names of the

         22  individuals.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Yes, we will

         24  make sure if you get this, our staff member Gelvina

         25  Stevenson or David Pristin's card.
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          2                 If you could do that, that would be

          3  terrific.

          4                 MR. GAREDO:  Right.  One of the

          5  things they said, "well, you know, we are not

          6  looking to replace these individuals." And this was

          7  several meetings.  Our Executive Director also met

          8  with officials from the Department of Health, and

          9  they said it was their interpretation as to how to

         10  use this money.

         11                 Now, that seemed a little strange

         12  because it was, the justifications for laying off

         13  this individuals was that the funding had been

         14  reduced and that, therefore, they had no other

         15  choice but to cut the number of positions.  But we

         16  do believe the money has been utilized somewhere

         17  else.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  And do you

         19  know whether they did rehire some of the positions,

         20  but do it with people who were not the laid off ones

         21  or we do not even--.

         22                 MR. GAREDO:  They posted four

         23  positions rather than recalling people, and they

         24  told the people who had been laid off, "look, if you

         25  want to apply you can go ahead and apply."  Which
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          2  meant they would start as a brand new employee with

          3  lower salary, lower wages and everything else, and

          4  it is our understanding that about four people out

          5  of the 43 people that were hired on the pest

          6  control, a title only.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Okay, I am

          8  going to definitely want to follow up with you on

          9  that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  That is a big

         11  concern of ours because this was an issue, as I

         12  recall, that was the year, you said`03 or`04

         13  right--.

         14                 MR. STELLA: `04 right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  When I recall

         16  the hearing in which it was announced that those

         17  cuts would take place in, particularly with regard

         18  to the lots, the workers in the lots, and that was a

         19  great concern of ours because we know that those

         20  lots were run by the City are the places were the

         21  rats breed the most, and to remove workers in the

         22  budget for those type of workers was basically an

         23  attack on those communities, of which some of us

         24  represent.

         25                 You mentioned earlier a white paper
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          2  that, can we get a copy of that of that white paper,

          3  it sort of explains some of the concerns that you

          4  had about how the program was being implemented?

          5                 MR. GAREDO:   Yes, okay.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  You can make

          7  sure we get a copy of that?

          8                 MR. GAREDO:  Absolutely.  One point

          9  that I would like to make is that a lot of our

         10  positions do generate revenue.               When

         11  our pest control technicians clean the lots, the

         12  City charges the owner of the lot, and in some cases

         13  the business owner, for the services that our

         14  employees just performed.               If they do

         15  not pay for the services, they could get fined as

         16  well, and they receive interest on that money.

         17                 If you take a look at the budget, you

         18  do see in the Department of Finance, a number of

         19  dollars that do come in as a result of the pest

         20  control services that our people provide, our

         21  members provide in the different communities.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Okay, the

         23  Administration is focusing on the Bronx because it

         24  has been described, by the Administration, as the

         25  hot spot, the place with the greatest difficulties.
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          2  You seem to have a different opinion about that.   Why

          3  do you think that the Administration has determined

          4  that the Bronx, or is announcing that the Bronx is

          5  the place with the greatest problems as opposed to

          6  the City in general?

          7                 MR. STELLA:  I am not sure whether

          8  the Administration is trying to target its, the way

          9  I am looking at it and I am all over the City, I

         10  have both as a professional exterminator, and both

         11  as a vice president talking to other colleagues, the

         12  Bronx is about the same as all the other boroughs.

         13  They are all hot spots.

         14                 Each individual borough due to

         15  transportation hubs, due to garbage transportation

         16  hubs, due to commerce, due to commercial strips,

         17  will have their hot spots in the high density

         18  population areas will have their hot spots.  But to

         19  call the Bronx the worst that it has ever been, I do

         20  not know, I do not have hard numbers to say that it

         21  is not, but it has been my experience traveling

         22  around that it is no worse than any other part of

         23  the City, and I would not know why they would be

         24  targeting this particular area except maybe they

         25  have 1,600 extra garbage cans to give out.
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          2                 MR. GAREDO:  I also think that it has

          3  to do a lot with the complaints that have been in

          4  the media recently, and as well the information that

          5  comes through the community boards.

          6                 A lot of the requests from the

          7  community boards in the budget process, each

          8  community board forwards their request for services

          9  where they feel is the priority, and pest control

         10  citywide was still the number one priority among all

         11  community boards, and there were a lot of the

         12  community boards that had recommendations, a lot of

         13  the complaints were coming from the Bronx.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Each of you are

         15  here in support of the legislation.

         16                 Now this position is the position of

         17  your union, or of your individual selves?

         18                 MR. GAREDO:  The position and the

         19  support that I spoke with is from the union, that is

         20  correct.

         21                 MR. STELLA:  And myself also, we

         22  spoke personal and from the union.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Council Member

         25  Stewart, you had a question?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Yes, I do

          3  have a question.

          4                 I want to know your opinion about a

          5  question my colleague had to the Administration

          6  earlier about garbage bags and having the required

          7  metal containers to put those garbage bags in.     Do

          8  you think that we should have some sort of

          9  legislation to have homeowners to do that?

         10                 MR. STELLA:  Yes, I am old enough to

         11  remember the old steel garbage cans, and when we had

         12  steel garbage cans we really did not have this

         13  problem.

         14                 I do remember some of the legislation

         15  a number of years ago, possibly with the Sanitation

         16  complaining about back injuries and whatever,

         17  lifting the steel garbage cans but, hey, reality is

         18  reality.

         19                 The black plastic bags are easy to

         20  chew through.  If the homeowner or the property

         21  owner puts them out at 12/1 o'clock at night, they

         22  sit there until 6/7 o'clock in the morning.  So, the

         23  rodent has six or seven hours to have a feast as the

         24  councilman stated.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Do you feel
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          2  that the fact that we outlawed those dumpsters for

          3  businesses on the sidewalks or near to businesses,

          4  where we store garbage, do you think that was a

          5  mistake?

          6                 MR. STELLA:  No, because as the other

          7  council woman was stating, they sit there, and they

          8  sit there, and they sit in the hot sun with grease

          9  and food, and they are just on open breeding ground

         10  for flies, roaches, rodents.

         11                 That part of the legislation, that

         12  was good.  If we could go back to those commercial

         13  establishments, using individual 30 or 50 gallon

         14  steel cans or heavy duty, rodent- resistant plastic

         15  cans, that would be the way to go.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  All right,

         17  because I feel that if some of those places what

         18  they do is they have to store the garbage, and if

         19  you do not have those containers, they have to put

         20  it in the back of the building or someplace, and it

         21  means then it will be a breeding ground for rats in

         22  the back alley, until they put it out, which to me

         23  creates an avenue for the rats to increase.        The

         24  other problem that I have is that we have so many of

         25  these attached buildings, with so many people living
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          2  in them.  I do not think the small, metal containers

          3  can hold all the garbage.  I really do not see how

          4  that is possible, because of the fact that all these

          5  buildings are attached, the tenants cannot get to

          6  the backyard.  There is no space in the back in some

          7  of these buildings, and the garbage cannot be stored

          8  in the apartments.

          9                 The other problem, the reason why we

         10  talk about that is we only pick up garbage twice a

         11  week.  Some of these garbages cannot store for more

         12  than a day, 24 hours.  So, you have got to look at

         13  it from that point of view.

         14                 I am wondering how to resolve that

         15  problem.  You are saying,`Yes, we can do this', but

         16  there is no space to put the garbage, too much

         17  garbage in New York City.

         18                 How can we resolve that?

         19                 MR. STELLA:  To be honest with you, I

         20  am not a sanitation expert but there is some middle

         21  ground, realistically, some middle ground does have

         22  to be struck.   Maybe increased pick ups would help

         23  but some middle ground does have to be struck, I am

         24  fighting a loosing battle here.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  All right.
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          2                 The other question I have, do you

          3  think that we should create a law, whereby, large

          4  construction sites, because some of these

          5  construction sites it takes maybe a year, 18 months,

          6  whatever, should we have some sort of an abatement

          7  or extermination certificate that they have to do

          8  this once a month until such time that the

          9  construction is completed?  Because a lot of times

         10  what will happen, you have this large construction

         11  site, the rats then get in there and they flourish.

         12                 When you are next door and you try to

         13  do what you have to do with your property, they come

         14  in from next door.

         15                 Should we have a law that these

         16  construction folks do extermination, or have some

         17  abatement and have a certificate to show that once a

         18  month?

         19                 MR. STELLA:  Well, I do not know

         20  about once a month. There is a law on the books that

         21  is called`The Pre demolition Extermination", and it

         22  is in place with DOHMH, whereby, if I was the

         23  contractor and I am demolishing this building right

         24  here, I have to go to DOHMH and prove that I have

         25  placed bait stations and the appropriate poisons in
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          2  this building before I demolish it and rebuild it as

          3  a new structure.  That is already in place.

          4                 As far as making them further

          5  responsible, go right ahead.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Yes, but

          7  that is if you are demolishing.

          8                 Suppose it is something like, it does

          9  not have to be a building in construction, it could

         10  be you are working on a highway or bridge, a lot of

         11  stuff accumulates along that area, that it remains

         12  like that until the construction is finished.

         13                 MR. STELLA:  Yes, yes, that would

         14  make sense.

         15                 MR. GAREDO:  If I may.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Go ahead.

         17                 MR. GAREDO:  I think this goes to the

         18  court of why we need this type of board.

         19                 The construction, for instance, by a

         20  building entity like a city entity, like the school

         21  construction authority is very different from a

         22  construction from say from DOT, or from a federal

         23  improvement construction.

         24                 We had an experience last year where

         25  we believe the City was violating the law, and we
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          2  wrote to the Attorney General, Eliot Spitzer asking

          3  for aid and intervention on the violation of the

          4  law.  He referred us to the city comptroller because

          5  it dealt with a contract.  We went to the city

          6  comptroller, and the comptroller said, "I do not

          7  really have jurisdiction over the contractor.  This

          8  happens to be a non- city agency."  So of course,

          9  they referred us back to the agency.  We went back

         10  to the agency and say, "well, you know, you are not

         11  doing this or your not requiring them to comply with

         12  the law."  The agency basically said, "well, we see

         13  things differently, we do not believe that is

         14  necessarily the case."  And that was the end of the

         15  story.

         16                 There was no other mechanism, no

         17  other place for you to go to.

         18                 Right now, I mean, we have heard

         19  complaints from people who are also our members.

         20  Eighty- five percent of DC 37 members live here, and

         21  they feel that the complaints should be filed within

         22  the union or in some cases because they have gone to

         23  the City and it has not been corrected, that they

         24  feel that somehow we can help.  But it is our

         25  experience as we represent the construction
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          2  laborers, and some of the engineers and architects

          3  of the city from the different agency, that is

          4  always an issue when you have construction and the

          5  environment starts to move around because that is

          6  what happens, and you do not know who to go to. You

          7  do not know what are the prerequisites for that

          8  specific agency to start the project.  And then what

          9  happens is, our members get blamed.  They say,

         10   "well, you guys are not doing your job."  The

         11  public cries and unfortunately that is just not the

         12  case.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Okay, thank

         14  you very much for your testimony.

         15                 MR. GAREDO:  Thank you.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  In your

         17  testimony, in addition to a lot of the other stuff

         18  that we are going to follow up on, you gave a couple

         19  of other ideas like reviewing compliance of state

         20  and federal law around certification and things like

         21  that, you and your representation on the advisory

         22  board.

         23                 Are there any other suggestions or

         24  ideas either that you have now, or that you would

         25  like to give us as it relates to rodent and pest
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          2  reduction?  And if not, I would just say that you

          3  know, both I think I speak for the Government

          4  Operations Committee and the Health Committee, that

          5  any ideas that your work or the work with your

          6  members that get developed, I just ask you to please

          7  feel free to forward those to us on a rolling basis

          8  if we would want to continue working on this issue

          9  outside of a formal hearing structure, so if you

         10  have any others now that did not make it into your

         11  testimony, great, if not, please feel free to just

         12  forward those to us because we would love to look at

         13  them as your work identifies good solutions.

         14  Certainly, you folks are going to be the best ones

         15  who are going to have solutions, I would think,

         16  because you are out there doing the work every day.

         17                 MR. GAREDO:  I think in general we

         18  have a concern, and that is, for this board if

         19  created, to be effective and efficient, it must be

         20  given the power to fulfill its mission.  It has to

         21  be able to review, implement policy when the

         22  Department of Health or any other agencies has not

         23  fulfilled its mission.  But I do think that a review

         24  of the HAVA Funding is used by the different

         25  agencies, it is really important because there is no
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          2  uniformity across the board.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Did you say--.

          4                 MR. GAREDO:  Pardon me?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  I am sorry, did

          6  you say

          7  HAVA --.

          8                 MR. GAREDO:   Not HAVA Funding, the

          9  funding who's responsibility falls, once the council

         10  allocates the funding to the different agency, HAVA

         11  Funding is distributed in increments.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  He thought you

         13  said HAVA which is`Help America Vote Act', which is

         14  under his jurisdiction, so I think he saw a big

         15  boondoggle going on there, the voting money going to

         16  the rats.

         17                 We do not want to have them vote

         18  because they have enough power as it is.

         19                 Any other committee members have

         20  questions for the folks from District Council 37?

         21                 I want to say we have been joined by

         22  our Majority Whip, Council member from Queens, Leroy

         23  Comrie.

         24                 Great, thank you both very much, and

         25  we will make sure you folks get cards.

                                                            123

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND HEALTH

          2                 Did any of the other folks who I had

          3  referenced before, then I think that is it.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Unless the

          5  Administration has something they want to say.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  All righty,

          7  then I guess this joint hearing of Government

          8  Operations and Health Committee is adjourned.

          9                 (Hearing adjourned 12:40 p.m.)
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